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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement £ & RS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company, | am pleased
to present to you the 2018 annual report of the Company (which together
with its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”).

During the year under review, the Group continued with its efforts in
developing the money lending business despite keen market competition in
Hong Kong. The Group’s average loan balance decreased from approximately
HK$974.70 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$897.42
million as at 31 December 2018. The Group’s revenue decreased to
approximately HK$92.76 million as compared to approximately HK$116.19
million in the previous year. The Group recorded profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$25.93 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 51.25% when compared to that for

the previous year.

The Group has continued to carry on and develop its securities related
business through Asia Wealth Securities Limited (“Asia Wealth Securities”)
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which holds the licence to carry
on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). The
continuous challenges in the industry causes the performance of the
securities related business to remain stagnant during the year under review.
In February 2019, Asia Wealth Securities obtained permission from the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) and the Stock
Exchange to commence margin financing business. It is expected that more
time will be required for the growth of the Group’s securities related
business and its growth will be subject to the overall economic environment

and the Group’s development strategy.

The external operating environment for the money lending business had been
challenging and the net interest margin is still under downward pressure. In
order to maintain sustainable growth of its money lending business, the
Group will continue to seek for loan portfolio expansion opportunities under
a balanced risk and return framework, taking into consideration of its

liquidity position from time to time.

The Group has put emphasis on its increasingly important corporate social
responsibility. While it is committed to economic development,
environmental preservation and social involvement, the Group utilises its
influence among different stakeholders to encourage involvements in various
social The ultimate aim is to achieve

aspects. long-term sustainable

development for both the Group and the community.

In view of the uncertain global economic outlook, the Group will actively
pursue opportunities and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard
of risk management which ensures that risks are assessed and monitored in

accordance with the Group’s stringent policies.
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N behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the AAZBREXEFTESRIFARABRRELEFEAMN
\\“ $hareholders of the Company and customers for their continuing loyalty and KA AESZ#H - EBRBLRBTME T A£E K
support. Relying on the diligence and dedication of its employees, the Group HERTHE TR EBEHAFEN  FERE
will maintain its unwavering focus on the sustainability of its objectives while ~ E£BEHREKH °
ensuring the long-term success of the Group.

Li Sin Hung Maxim FTEFRHITEF
Chairman and Executive Director TR
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019 e —BE-—hF=ZA=-+=H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of money lending and
securities trading. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
continued to focus on conducting money lending business by providing both
secured and unsecured loans to customers, including individuals, corporations
and foreign domestic workers. At the same time, the Group also carried on
securities trading business for the provision of services in relation to

securities brokerage and investments in listed securities.

The Group's average loan balance decreased from approximately HK$974.70
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$897.42 million as at
31 December 2018. In order to enhance its competitiveness and to maintain
its market position within the ever changing industry and economy, the
Group has continued to develop its loan portfolio during the year under
review by diversifying its customer base, in particular individual and
corporate customers from different market segments. Meanwhile, to ensure
the credit quality of loan portfolio from time to time, the Group puts
considerable effort in strengthening its credit risk control by reviewing and

modifying its current credit assessments and control measures.

The Group has been carrying on securities brokerage business through Asia
Wealth Securities which holds the licence to carry on Type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity under the SFO. Despite the continuous effort of
the Group in the development of the securities trading business, a decrease
in revenue was recorded in securities trading business during the year under
review. This is largely due to the intense competition in the securities trading
market and additional time is required for the development of customer base
under the prevailing business condition of the Group and the market
situation. In February 2019, Asia Wealth Securities obtained permission from
the SFC and the Stock Exchange to commence margin financing business.
Subject to the overall economic environment and the Group’s development
strategy, it is expected that the margin financing business will provide a new
source of revenue to the Group in the future.

In the future, while maintaining consistent availability of liquidity for the
money lending business, the Group will closely monitor its cash position and
explore potential investment opportunities,
investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed equity securities or project-
based subject to the prevailing market condition and the
financial position of the Group. In pursuing the investment opportunities, the

including but not limited to
investments,

Group will take into account the potential returns and seek to minimise the
possible market risks and liquidity risks.

Looking ahead, the Group will maintain healthy development of different
business segments to consolidate its business portfolio and diversify its
source of income, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders.
While leveraging its experience in money lending business, the Group would
like to further develop such business by expanding its customer base to
different territories including Mainland China and Macau in light of the keen
competition in the ever-changing local market. Meanwhile, the Group will
also closely monitor its capital base from time to time and will pursue
corresponding solutions where necessary in order to maintain sufficient
funding for different potential opportunities.
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REVENUE

The Group's revenue is derived from interest received from the provision of
various types of loan products as well as commission received from the
provision of securities brokerage services to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue generated was
approximately HK$92.76 million, representing a decrease of approximately
20.16% over the revenue of approximately HK$116.19 million recorded for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The revenue for the year under review
comprised loan interest income amounting to approximately HK$92.73
million (for the year ended 31 December 2017: approximately HK$115.89
million) and commission income from securities brokerage services amounting
to approximately HK$0.03 million (for the year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately HK$0.30 million).

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in both the
average loan balance and average interest rate in the money lending
business. In this respect, the Group’s average loan balance decreased by
approximately 7.93% to approximately HK$897.42 million for the year under
review as compared to approximately HK$974.70 million for the
corresponding period in 2017. The average interest rate in the money
lending business recorded a decrease from approximately 11.89% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 10.33% per
annum for the year under review. The revenue derived from the securities
trading segment has decreased as a result of reduced trading transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 & 51 5 A T ontinved s
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Revenue breakdown

W 2% BA 4

—E—)\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F# T

Unsecured loans EIRFER
Personal loans AAE R 51,644 46,265
Corporate loans TEER 12,034 27,143
Foreign domestic workers loans INERFEBIER 5,009 5,806
Sub-total INEE 68,687 79,214

Secured loans FIRFER
First property mortgage loans F-MERBER 2,177 6,752
Subordinated property mortgage loans FE-—MERBER 1,105 1,661
Other secured loans HEtBEBER 20,764 28,256
Sub-total IMNET 24,046 36,669
Total B 92,733 115,883

NET INTEREST MARGIN HEE

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 9.89% for the
year ended 31 December 2018, representing a drop compared to that of
approximately 10.93% for the corresponding period in 2017. In respect of
unsecured loans, the net interest margin decreased from approximately
11.00% for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 9.96% for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Meanwhile, net interest margin in
respect of secured loans decreased from approximately 10.77% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately 9.70% for the year ended 31

December 2018.
The decrease in overall net interest margin was primarily due to the Group’s

pricing strategy under the low interest rate environment of the competitive
money lending industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Net interest margin

I@)z uj%ﬁ *ﬁ' (continued #&)

BERE

—E-N\%E —T—tF

Unsecured loans EBIRAER
Individuals 8 A 9.30% 11.64%
Corporations 2 9.67% 8.75%
Foreign domestic workers INERERBT 48.84% 47.18%

Secured loans FHRAER
Individuals & A 9.23% 10.72%
Corporations = 9.87% 10.79%
All loans FAEEm 9.89% 10.93%
Unsecured loans EEBEX 9.96% 11.00%
Secured loans BHEBER 9.70% 10.77%

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other income recorded a substantial increase of approximately 110.44%
from approximately HK$2.93 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$6.17 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase was mainly due to the receipt of a one-off compensation
income from a former Director by the Company which was recognised in the
year under review. Other income of the Group also includes bank interest
income derived from bank deposit, other interest income which was mainly
generated from the provision of securities brokerage services as well as the
Group's participation in a loan facility agreement.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other gains of approximately HK$1.19
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to other gains of
approximately HK$14.54 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Other gains recorded for the year under review were resulted from the
realised gain from investments in listed securities (i.e. financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss). The substantial decrease in other gains for the
year under review was mainly attributable to the fact that a gain on disposal
of a subsidiary was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 following the disposal of a former subsidiary of the
Company, namely Techlink Investments Limited, which was completed on 20
February 2017 and no such gain was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Details of other income and other gains and losses are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprise employment expenses,
occupancy costs for its offices and branches and depreciation and
amortisation charges. Employment expenses include directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and bonuses, mandatory and voluntary provident fund
contributions, and insurance premium for employees, directors and officers,
etc. Occupancy costs include rental expenses and management fees,
government rent and rates as well as utilities expenses. Administrative
expenses also include repair and maintenance and general insurance
premiums, etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s administrative expenses
decreased and recorded at approximately HK$33.73 million as compared to
approximately HK$43.85 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
which was mainly due to a decrease in employment expenses resulting from
the absence of payment of the performance related bonuses in the year
under review which was granted to a former Director for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Administrative expenses

Piscussion and Analysis & 12 /& 5 5@ & 20 8T (continued i)
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STRATIVE EXPENSES

1T R X
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EXxfe EEFSRLEL BHRARERE
EHFURER EERERAENRRE
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HE-T-)\F+ZA=+T—HIEFE 4A5H
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F JE 943,850,000/ 7T 7, 2> + W 815 £933,730,000
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A (RERARBE-_"T—+F+-_A=+—
HIEFEET—EAES) BFEEERIAD -

THBRX
—E-N\E =Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Employment expenses EERX 22,019 33,704
Occupancy costs 8 AR AR 6,205 6,278
Depreciation and amortisation charges e REHE 4,491 2,707
Repair and maintenance and others HIERERAMAL 564 1,026
Insurance premium R E 448 132
Total st 33,727 43,847

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Group's impairment losses relate to impairment allowance for loans

receivable on individual assessment and collective assessment.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans receivable of approximately HK$15.63 million as compared to
approximately HK$2.59 million for the corresponding period in 2017. Such
significant increase in impairment loss is principally a result of the application
of new impairment methodology to recognise impairment loss based on the
expected credit loss as set out in note 3(A)iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 57 5

Impairment loss on loans receivable

FE W 5 R o (B 5 1R

2018
—Z—0\fE
HK$'000
FH#T
Impairment allowance for loans receivable on individual 837 7% 1 #9 fig U & 3¢
assessment BB B 2,660 2,786
Impairment allowance for loans receivable on collective 5 &2 57 {# &9 JiE I & 3%
assessment B BB 12,974 (200)
Total 45t 15,634 2,586

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group’s other operating expenses mainly comprise legal and professional
fees and consultancy services fees, other general expenses and advertising
and promotion expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$12.24 million for the year ended 31
December 2017, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2018 increased to approximately HK$17.58 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in legal and professional fees and consultancy
services fees for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Other operating expenses

HihEERX

H AR EF

AEBEMAMKERAYXTEBRR AR REXER
ARFRARBER  Hi—RAXMES MR
FAX

EEE-_T—+F+_AZt+—BHLFENEAM
40 5 #912,240,0008 AR LL - HLE =T — N
FTZA=T—HILFENHEMEERZEME
#917,580,000/8 70 - M EZHNEE_T—N
F+ZA=Z+ - BLFENZIEAREEEAUR
BARGEEAEMATE -

2018
—E-N\F

HK$°000

TER

Legal and professional fees and consultancy services fees JEARERBEEBRI K

AR & A 8,720 4,085
Other general expenses Hih—MAxZ 7,307 5,996
Advertising and promotion expenses EER#ERERS 1,552 2,156
Total Bt 17,579 12,237

EF-EREREEFERAF —T-N\FER



The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for loan(s).
Finance costs decreased from approximately HK$9.39 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$1.58 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease in finance costs was due to a
decrease in the interest payment resulting from the full repayment of the
loan owed to a lender which is a third party independent of the Company
and its connected persons (“Relevant Loan”) during the year under review.
Besides, there was no interest expense on loan notes or bank loans during
the year under review as there was no outstanding loan notes or bank loans
during the year under review.

Finance costs

MisER

AEENMBERAIZBEEROMNE L - 8
BERRBE_T—tF+-_A=+—HLFE
#79,390,0008 T TR EZHBHZ T - /\F+ = A
=+—H 1L FF 41,580,000/ 7T 81 %5 & AR
DEEHREEFEAN  M—2ERT (RARQF
MEBEATNBILE=7)ZREEMERD
SR (THEAER])  BEM BB T ¥ e sk
REBEFEALESRERXLRITERDFNEH
X EAROEFEALEBEITENNERTER
RITE -

MBER
—E—\F —E— L&
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Interest on bank loans R1TE KA B — 62
Interest on other loans H & RFE 1,583 8,340
Effective interest expense on loan notes EXREBNERF X
L3 — 989
Total st 1,583 9,391

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 51.25% from approximately HK$53.18 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$25.93 million for the year
ended 31 2018. The decrease
attributable to owners of the Company for the year under review was mainly

December in the consolidated profit
attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue for the year under review; (ii) the
decrease in other gains for the year under review due to the absence of a
gain on disposal of a subsidiary which was recorded as a one-off item for
the year ended 31 December 2017; and (iii) the increase in impairment loss
on loans receivable for the year under review. The effect of the above
factors was off-set by the decrease in administrative expenses as a result of
a decrease in employment expenses on account of the absence of payment
of the performance related bonuses in the year under review which was
granted to a former Director for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
decrease in finance costs.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and cash balances (excluding
trust and segregated accounts) of approximately HK$37.36 million (31
December 2017:
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The decrease in bank and cash balances

approximately HK$202.02 million), all of which are
was mainly due to the full repayment of the Relevant Loan during the year
under review. Save for the minimum working capital requirement for the
securities trading business of the Group, there is no minimum capital
requirement for the Group's principal money lending business. The Board
considers that the cash level of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was

satisfactory in terms of fund utilisation.

The Group adopted a treasury policy with the aims to utilise the surplus and/
or idle funds of the Group and to achieve capital appreciation in the long-
term. Under the treasury policy, the Group may invest in diversified
investments products, including but not limited to government bonds and
debt instruments, listed equity securities on the Stock Exchange, which the

Board thinks fit and in accordance with the treasury policy.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no loan notes (31 December 2017:
Nil) and no interest-bearing loans (31 December 2017: HK$150 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$548.07 million (31 December 2017:
HK$608.10 million) and the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to
December 2017:
approximately 4.49 times). The improvement in current ratio was mainly

approximately

current liabilities, was approximately 173.86 times (31
attributable to the full settlement of the Relevant Loan during the year under
review.

The Group generally finances its operations by (i) cash flow from operating
activities; and (ii) loans and/or credit facilities from independent third parties
and banks. Where appropriate, the Group may conduct fund raising activities
by issuing equity shares and/or loan notes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had been no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group. The Group had no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2018.

f@ }= Dj 5 & *)'I/' (continued {&)
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As at 31
investments.

December 2018, the Group did not hold any significant

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 41 staff (31
December 2017: 50 staff). Total remuneration of employees for the year
ended 31 2018
approximately HK$21.74 million

December (including directors’ emoluments) was
(31 December 2017:

HK$33.46 million). The Company’s remuneration policies are formulated on

approximately
the basis of performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee and with reference to the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration packages of the employees of the Group comprise monthly
fixed salaries, medical insurance, contributions to statutory mandatory
provident fund scheme and share option scheme etc. Discretionary year-end
bonus based on individual performance may also be paid to employees as

recognition of and reward for their contributions.

The Group adopted a staff training and development policy with the aims to
improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high
quality staff training forms the foundation for the provision of superior
financial services to the customers. Staff training is provided regularly with
reference to the fast-changing market environment, the business objectives
of the Group and the relevant requirements of regulatory bodies. For
instance, training materials in relation to the updates or information of the
money lending industry are provided to staff.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Group’s assets was pledged as
security for liability.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being borrowings and obligations
under finance lease less bank and cash balances) divided by the sum of the
adjusted capital (being the share capital, retained profits and other reserves)
and net debt. The Group recorded an increase in net cash (i.e. negative net
debt) to approximately HK$34.34 million as at 31 December 2018 as
compared to a net cash of approximately HK$28.30 million as at 31
December 2017. It was mainly attributable to the decrease in borrowings as
at 31 December 2018. Therefore, the gearing ratio remained negative (i.e.
approximately -3.58%) as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:

approximately -3.02%).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business and
securities trading business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and cost of
business are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to
the risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal.
Hence, no financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended since 24
November 2017 pursuant to the direction of the SFC made under Section
8(1) of the Securities and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (”“Section 8(1) Direction”) and will remain
suspended until further notice. Pursuant to the delisting framework under
the amended GEM Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 August 2018,
the Stock Exchange may cancel the listing of any securities that have been
suspended from trading for a continuous period of 12 months. In the case
of the Company where its shares have been suspended from trading for less
than 12 months as at 1 August 2018, such 12-month period commenced
from 1 August 2018 and will expire on 31 July 2019. If the Company fails
to resume trading in its shares by 31 July 2019, the Listing Department of
the Stock Exchange will recommend the GEM Listing Committee to proceed
with the cancellation of the Company’s listing.

The Company submitted its written representations to the SFC on 7 February
2018 and 6 July 2018 addressing the issues and concerns raised by the SFC
and seeking the SFC’s permission for resumption of trading in the shares of
the Company. On 6 August 2018 and 21 September 2018, the SFC issued
letters to the Company enclosing its memoranda to the SFC's board of
directors together with relevant documents relied upon by the SFC in
response to the Company’s written representations.

On 14 November 2018, the Company made further submission to the SFC
demanding an unconditional and immediate revocation of the Section 8(1)
Direction. The Company was invited to attend a meeting with the SFC in
February 2019 for clarification of issues before the board of directors of the
SFC.

Announcements were made by the Company on 1 November 2018 and 1
February 2019 pursuant to Rule 17.26A of the GEM Listing Rules. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company as and when appropriate to
keep its shareholders and potential investors informed.

o
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present this corporate governance report (“CG Report”) for the year ended

31 December 2018. This CG Report highlights the key corporate governance
practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective
Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code and no deviation from the CG Code had been noted by
the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2018. No

incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the year.

each of the Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating the
Group’s long term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions, supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group's policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the remuneration of the
Directors and the adoption of any changes in accounting policies and
practice. The Board also communicates with the shareholders of the
Company and regulatory bodies and makes
shareholders on final dividend and approves the declaration of any interim
dividend.

recommendation to the

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development
of the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value,
while balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.
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The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules that the Board includes at least three independent non-
executive Directors, which represents at least one-third of the Board and at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” from pages 37

to 40 of this annual report.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”), senior management and the
compliance officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company
is in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as

Directors, at the expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company who regularly review the
financial results and performance of the Group and make financial and
decisions for the

operational implementation of strategies and plans

approved by the Board.
There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between
members of the Board and between the Chairman and the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company.

ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Such retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
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nance Report (EXE 8RS (continued &)

fill a casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the
shareholders in general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board. Any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders of the Company after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter of
appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a term
of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and removal
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by two different individuals to ensure a clear division
between their responsibilities and independence. The separation ensures a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual. The Chairman of the Company is currently Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim
who was appointed as the Chairman with effect from 7 February 2018 upon
the resignation of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, a former executive Director and the
former Chairman of the Company. The responsibility of the Chairman is to
manage the Board to ensure its effectiveness in all aspects by providing
strategic and business direction. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company
is Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, who is responsible for the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer also focuses on
implementing objectives, strategies and policies approved and delegated by
the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. As at the date of
this CG Report, the Company had five independent non-executive Directors
and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of two years.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year on a
quarterly basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in
advance. For other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of
significant issues in relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given
in a reasonable time in advance. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any
directors who or whose close associates (or associates for connected
transactions) have a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any
other proposal to be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the
meeting.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda
and the accompanying board papers at least three days or such other period
as agreed in advance in order to allow the Directors to include any other
matters in the agenda that are required to be discussed or resolved at the
meeting. To enable the Directors to make informed decisions, adequate and
appropriate information in relation to the matters of the meeting are also
sent to all Directors in a timely manner. The Company Secretary is
responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comments within reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is made available to them for their review

and signing.
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\\ 1;":_‘;‘ e attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and general REEZ-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HBLLFE =

\i\ \Hneetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the FHFEEFEEZLREREHNHERINWOT
following table:

Number of meetings attended/number
of meetings held during the tenure of
the relevant Director for the year
ended 31 December 2018
HEERAY CHAESNEE
—E-N\E+-A=+—BLEEZEH

RFTEITHERRY
Board meeting  General meeting
EXEEH BREXE
Total number of meetings held during the year REBE-F—N\£E
ended 31 December 2018 +=ZA=+—HLEER
EITHERERY 10 2
Name of Directors ESKa
Executive Directors BITES
Li Sin Hung Maxim (Chairman) — appointed as an T (ERE)— R
executive Director on 9 January 2018 —F-NF—ANH
and appointed as the Chairman on 7 February 2018 — EZ (T BHiTEFEFRR
—FE-NFZAELH
BEERBLTRE 10/10 2/2
Xie Si W 8/10 2/2
Cao Huifang BEF 6/10 2/2
Wong Kai Lun — appointed as an executive Director ~ &Rifs — R=-ZF—NF—H
on 9 January 2018 NAEZERHITEE 10/10 2/2
Sin Kwok Lam — resigned as an executive Director HEN — RZF—1F
and the Chairman on 7 February 2018 ZHEHBEEHTEER
ey 7,1 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Fung Kam Man 5 88 X 9/10 2/2
Wang Zhiwei FEHE 9/10 2/2
Chan Tung Tak Alain FeR i 12 8/10 2/2
Li Long =3 9/10 22
Choy Sze Chung Jojo =B 9/10 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director of an issuer should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment. All newly appointed Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2018 had received tailored induction package covering
the statutory and regulatory obligations of directors and confirmed that they
had complied with the code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code during the year
under review.

Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remain
December 2018, the
Directors, namely Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang, Mr.
Wong Kai Lun, Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak
Alain, Mr.
continuous professional development by attending training courses provided

informed and relevant, during the year ended 31

Li Long and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo had participated in
by professional firms or institutions, or reading materials provided by the
Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing Rules or relevant regulatory
requirements. All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
comprises four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Choy Sze
Chung Jojo (chairman of the audit committee), Dr.

Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain.

Fung Kam Man, Mr.
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udit committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31 December HZE-—T—\&+—-A=+—HAL&F BXZE
2018. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance record of B &AMANEGH BEXRLZESKEREKE R
each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended FREZ=-ZE—NGF+-_A=+—HILFEHET
31 December 2018 are set out below: MWEZZEEERNEELERIAT :
Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended
31 December 2018
HEEH XY #EHEEA
RERBE-_F—/)\&F
+-ZA=+—HLEEZ
EHRFREITHERRE
Total number of meetings held during the year RBE-F—-N\F+=-A=+—H 5
ended 31 December 2018 IEEEREBETHERERE
Name of committee members EEERERE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo EBBEEAE 5/5
(chairman of the audit committee) (BERZEEEE)
Dr. Fung Kam Man Vit b 5/5
Mr. Wang Zhiwei THEAELE 5/5
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain PRiBE L& 5/5

The primary function of the audit committee is to monitor integrity of the
Company'’s financial statements, financial reports and accounts and to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Company and its
subsidiaries. It also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors and reviews
the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal control

systems (“RM & IC Systems”) on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group’s
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, the RM & IC Systems and the effectiveness of the issuer’s internal
audit function. It has discussed with the management on the RM & IC
Systems to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have
effective systems. The committee has also made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-appointment of the external auditors after
reviewing the scope of work offered, taking into account their remuneration

and terms of engagement.
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With effect from 20 December 2018, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") has resigned
as auditors of the Company as the Company and RSM were unable to agree
on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. Following
the resignation of RSM, Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) has
been appointed as the new auditors of the Group with the recommendation
of the audit committee. Considering that RSM has been the auditors of the
Group since 2012, the Board and the audit committee took the view that a
change of auditors demonstrates a good corporate governance practice.

During the year under review, the Board did not take a different view from

the audit committee on the appointment of external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has complied with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the audit committee comprises a
minimum of three non-executive Directors, at least one of whom is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive

Director.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (chairman
of the nomination committee) and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.
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TXEB

attendance record of each member at the nomination committee meetings  J&
held during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below: ok

Total number of meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2018

Name of committee members
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (chairman of the nomination

committee) — appointed as a member and the chairman of

the nomination committee on 7 February 2018

Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam — ceased to be a member and the
chairman of the nomination committee on
7 February 2018

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, appointment or re-
appointment or re-designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors

Ei

ES
ecember 2018. The composition of the nomination committee and the EB&
S

/__:.;: (continued #&)
ZE-N\FH+ZA=ZF+—HLEFE REZ
BITMRAGH - IREZEENERZTHEL
REBEE - N\F+_A=+—HILFEET
EEZEGEENHEZBRINOT
Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended
31 December 2018
HEEH XY #EHEEA
BRERBE_F-)\&
+-ZA=+—HLEEEZ
R RITHERRIE
RBE-_FT-A\NE+-A=+—HL 2
FERNETHERARY
EEENENRSE
FERAKE(BEZEEELTR)— R=F 11
—NFZRA+tRAEZIRIEEZREE
Bk B F#F
588 il & 2/2
EEBERE 212
BRim iR 172
ERRELE 212
GEMEE — R=ZF—-NFZA+H 11
THERBIEEEZEEEHKERTFE
REZEGNTIZBEAMTEFTSNHERS - A

BEERARAREEZENREAR BEENE
EREFLZERFET EFETTE RTERE
UHRRTEFNBUMRNETSREZSE -

and assessment of the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors.
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The Company adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The board diversity
policy was revised in January 2019. The Company considers that diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a number of
measurable objectives including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
skills,
length of service and other factors that the Company deems

cultural and educational background, professional experience,
knowledge,
relevant. Such measurable objectives for diversity will be taken into account
in determining appointments to the Board and the continuation of those
appointments to achieve the optimum composition of the Board. The
nomination committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives

on an annual basis and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Company adopted a nomination policy which became effective in
January 2019. The nomination policy sets out the selection criteria in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria
include but not limited to academic background, qualifications, relevant

experiences in the industry, character and integrity of the proposed
candidate. Suitable candidate can be nominated by any Director for the
nomination committee’s consideration. Nomination committee should
evaluate the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria
as set out in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the
nomination committee will then make appropriate recommendations to the
Board for approval. All appointments of Directors will ultimately be based on
merit while taking into account the measurable objectives with regard to the

benefits of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee will review the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy on a regular basis and discuss any revision that may be

required, and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

During the year under review, the nomination committee has assessed and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well as the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee considers that an appropriate balance of diversity is maintained
on the current Board, which comprises members of both gender and of
different qualifications and experience. The nomination committee has
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors and other
relevant issues. During the year under review, the nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the personal profile, experience and qualifications of
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim and Mr. Wong Kai Lun and made recommendations

to the Board for their appointments.
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The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently
comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of
the remuneration committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain

and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.

ﬁ % % /é i& /__:.z: (continued &)
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The remuneration committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31 ®HEZEZZ—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE FMWZ
December 2018. The composition of the remuneration committee and the E&@RITHEAEZ -FNZEGKEREKE D
attendance record of each member at the remuneration committee meetings FBREZE-ZE—N\F+_A=+—BILFELRTT
held during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below: WEMZESERNERELERIGT :
Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended
31 December 2018
HEEHERE HEHEEA
BRENRBE_F-—)\&
+T-A=+—HLEEZ
EHRFFRITHERRIE
Total number of meetings held during the year RBE-_FT—-N\NF+-HA=+—H 4
ended 31 December 2018 LEEREBTHERERE
Name of committee members ZEEERERS
Dr. Fung Kam Man Vit B g e 4/4
(chairman of the remuneration committee) (FFNZ B2+ /E)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim — appointed as a member of the — Z#ftEE— R-F—\F-HF+HE 3/3
remuneration committee on 7 February 2018 EERFNEEEKE
Mr. Wang Zhiwei FEHELE 4/4
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain PRiBIELAE 3/4
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo EREIRLAE 4/4
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam — ceased to be a member of the GEMEE — RZF-NF_H+H 11

remuneration committee on 7 February 2018

of the
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and

The primary duties remuneration committee are to make
structure and to determine the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments and ensure none of the Directors or any of their
associates will determine his/her own remuneration.
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During the year under review, the remuneration committee adopted the
approach under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages as well as the terms of
the service contracts of the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company. In addition, it has met to determine the remuneration policy
and structure and to assess the performance of Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
set out below:

ﬁ % = J—\ ﬁﬁ & (continued #5)

REBFERN FHZEERMOEEEATAZ
P RMESTEEB. 1. 2(0) & T 2 H0% - IFE?*%E&'
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RERERBE QBB - LLIh Haﬁh‘;aﬁ%
EEFMBEREREANFHET 2RA -

BECEERTIEXEBISE SRERER
HE-_Z—\F+_A=+—BLLFEZRAR 3
DZEEHFMNIHOT

Number of Individuals
EEAH

HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,000/ 7T £3,000,000/% T 1
CREDIT COMMITTEE FEZEg

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of
better management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of
the credit committee are responsible for, among other things, approving and
overseeing the Group’s credit policy and monitoring the Group's loan
portfolio. The credit committee currently comprises four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, Ms. Xie Si, Ms. Cao Huifang and Mr. Wong
Kai Lun.
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2018. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance record of
each member at the credit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:

Total number of meetings held during the year

BE_T-\E+-_A=+-H FEZE8&H
THZRed EFEZESKERSKELER
BE_Z-N\F+A=1+—-HLFERTNE
EZEge L ELERIMT

Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended

31 December 2018
HEEERY EHER
BRERBE_F-)\&
+-A=+—HLEEZ
R RITHERRIE

REBE-F-N\F+=-A=+—-HL

ended 31 December 2018 EEREBTHERERY 12
Name of committee members EEERERE
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim TR E 12/12
Ms. Xie Si Filk e 12/12
Ms. Cao Huifang BEF LT 12/12
Mr. Wong Kai Lun =R m A 12/12

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A compliance committee was established in 2010 serving the corporate
governance function of the Company, with the aim to ensure the
compliance of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable
to the Group, in particular the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) ("MLO") and the SFO, from time to time. The major
duties of the compliance committee include to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors
and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.

The compliance committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance
committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and Mr. Choy Sze
Chung Jojo.
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The compliance committee regularly reviews matters regarding the
compliance of the Group with the MLO, the SFO and other relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has adopted relevant
compliance manuals which govern the Group’s compliance matters in
relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other

relevant regulations.

During the year under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has recorded
the issues identified during the review and made several suggestions by way
of written resolutions to the Board and the management of the Company on
issues particularly concerning internal control, corporate social responsibilities
and corporate governance. For instance, the compliance committee
recommended the Company to take appropriate actions in response to the
Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders issued by the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong (“CR") in October 2018. The Company has
acted and would continue to act on the recommendations of the compliance

committee.
CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

A credit review committee was established in 2018 for the purpose of
enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. The major
duties of the credit review committee include to conduct periodic reviews on
different loan cases and to make submission to the Board regarding the
results and findings of the review.

The credit review committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the credit
review committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report from pages 75 to 80 of this
annual report.
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(continued &)

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Cheang Yee Wah
Eva, as the Company Secretary. She is a Chartered Financial Analysts Charter
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. As at the date of this CG Report, Ms. Cheang’s
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an

holder, a member of The Hong Kong

executive Director and the Chairman of the Company. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditors of the Company for the audit and non-audit services
provided amounted to HK$700,000 and HK$750,000 respectively. The non-
audit services comprised fees for taxation services, pre-planning annual audit

and interim review.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the
day-to-day operation and business development of the Group while

maintaining risk at an optimal level.
SYSTEM FEATURES

The RM & IC Systems of the Company are designed to identify and monitor
risks from day-to-day operations and they are embodied by the Board
through the relevant board committees, the management, the branches and
departments and the internal audit function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM & IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the RM & IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regard,
the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM & IC systems
established and maintained by the management of the Company at least
annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM & IC Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM &
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and

considered these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system and the RM & IC Systems. It also
develops a regular platform to discuss the RM & IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
maintain effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
audit committee considers the major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and the management’s response to these findings. The audit
committee also regularly reviews the findings and opinions of the internal
audit function and the management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM

& IC Systems.

Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal
control of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee
has conducted periodic reviews on issues including credit quality of various
cases including cases of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Reviews on
current loan cases are also conducted as a continuous monitoring on credit
quality. Results and findings of the review are submitted to the Board for
further discussion.

The Internal Audit Function The internal audit function is performed by Dr.
Fung Kam Man, an independent non-executive Director. The internal audit
function generally carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s RM & IC Systems.

The Management, Branches and Departments The management is
responsible for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM & IC
Systems. The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for
the Group's policies and manuals on risk management and internal control.
The branches and departments of the Group, as the daily operation units,
are responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time
to the management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the disclosure policy and procedures to promote consistent
disclosure practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO.
Under the policy, the management shall report to the Board as soon as
practicable for any event which may constitute inside information, and the
Board shall decide, if required, to make relevant disclosure in a timely
manner.
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Risk Assessment

Risk Identification i e ma e

[ B B

Risk Identification The branches and the major subsidiaries of the Group
are required to report on material risks identified in a risk management
report (on branch or subsidiary level) which is submitted to the management
periodically.

The
assessment and measurement involve the participation of management in

Risk Assessment and Measurement internal processes of risk
assessing the risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk.
The management reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that
appropriate controls and measures are in place or in progress. The
management, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes,
compiles a risk management report (on Company level) to the audit
committee and the internal audit function. Following review by the audit
committee and internal audit function, the company risk management report

would be submitted to the Board.

Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolve material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
report (on Company level) from time to time. Such measures vary according
to the type of risks or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company's risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM & IC systems in terms of risk control and mitigation. For instance,
the risk management policy is subject to regular reviews in order to respond
to any significant changes to the products, services or relevant laws and
regulations that might impact the risk exposure of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group’s
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. It is also vital for developing and
maintaining continued relationship with the Company’s potential and existing

investors.
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The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a

communication platform with its shareholders and investors, where the

Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F.-22/F.,
19-20 Connaught Road Central,

enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an

Fung House, Nos.
Hong Kong or via email to
informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provides an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
All Directors endeavor to be available at the general meetings to answer any
questions raised by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no significant change
in the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interests are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation in
AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by
post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All
registered shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general
meetings of the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in
the register of members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the

meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for
special general meetings. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened

shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said date.
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t to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders
epresenting not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less
than one hundred shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the
resolution which is intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit
a statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights as
mentioned above to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communications with
Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, aged 48, is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He joined the Group and was appointed as a
Director in January 2018 and subsequently appointed as the Chairman in
February 2018. Mr. Li is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for managing the Board to ensure its
effectiveness in all aspects by providing strategic and business direction and
ensuring the loan quality of the Group. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree of
business administration and management (with honours) awarded by De
Montfort University. He worked in various companies including without
limitation a banking company and a solicitors’ firm. Mr. Li was an executive
director of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
("National Arts”) (stock code 8228), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability and whose shares are
listed on GEM, from 13 May 2009 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director of National Arts from 9 May 2011 to 5 January 2018. Mr. Li is a
current holder of the Estate Agents License (Individual) and a Certified

Paralegal in the Institute of Paralegals.

Ms. Xie Si, aged 30, is an executive Director and the compliance officer of
the Company. She joined the Group and was appointed as a Director in
September 2017. Ms. Xie is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Xie is responsible for supervising the overall operation and
management, formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of
the Group. Ms. Xie graduated from Southwest University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy. Ms. Xie has over 9
years of experience in banking and financial industry. She has extensive
experiences in providing financial services to the customers, including
corporate and individual clients.

Ms. Cao Huifang, aged 30, is an executive Director of the Company. She
joined the Group and was appointed as a Director in September 2017. Ms.
Cao is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cao is
responsible for supervising the overall operation and management,
formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of the Group.
Ms. Cao graduated from Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s degree in
commerce majoring in business English. She has extensive experience in
strategic planning, corporate finance and financial management. Ms. Cao is
currently the corporate representative, general manager and executive
director of a private company in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"),
which is engaged in design and trading of apparels and trading of

chemicals.

Mr. Wong Kai Lun, aged 41, is an executive Director of the Company. He
joined the Group and was appointed as a Director of the Group in January
2018. Mr. Wong is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong is

responsible for supervising the overall operation and

management, formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of
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Pure Derma Limited, a company |ncorporated in Hong Kong with limited

liability, which is principally engaged in the medical beauty business.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree
of Master of Science in Financial Management from the University of London
and a degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of
Nottingham. Dr. Fung has been certified as a Project Management
Professional by the Project Management Institute. He is a certified financial
planner certified by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a
certified financial planner of The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial
Planners. Dr. Fung has experience of more than 25 years in the continuing
education and vocational training field. Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed
higher education development and quality assurance consultant. Dr. Fung
was an independent non-executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited
(currently known as “Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited"”) (stock code:
08086), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to 2
November 2017. He acted as the independent non-executive director of Jia
Meng Holdings Limited (currently known as “EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited”) (stock code: 08101), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from
1 April 2015 to 21 September 2016.

Mr. Wang Zhiwei, aged 51,
executive Director in October 2016. Mr.

was appointed as an independent non-
Wang graduated from Taiyuan
Institute of Machinery (currently known as the North University of China) in
1990 with a bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Wang has
been qualified as a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the PRC
since December 2000. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience in holding
senior executive positions in various corporations in the PRC with businesses
involving e-commerce, software development, coal and energy development
and solar power. Mr. Wang was an independent non-executive director of
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited
(currently known as “Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited”) (stock code:
08081), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to 13
August 2018. From January 2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice
president of a subsidiary of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (currently
known as “Power Financial Group Limited”) (stock code: 00397), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From May
2014 to June 2016, Mr. Wang also worked as the deputy general manager
of China Demeter Investments Limited (currently known as “China Demeter
Financial Investments Limited”) (stock code: 08120), the shares of which are
listed on GEM, and participated in seeking potential investment opportunities
in different projects.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2017. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of science
degree (with honours) in architecture and a diploma in architecture from the
1979 and 1983
respectively. He had held a corporate membership of the Royal Institute of
British Architects, United Kingdom from 1985 to 2014, and had been a
registered member of the Architects Registration Board of the United

Polytechnic of North London, United Kingdom in

Kingdom from 1984 to 2014, a member of the Royal Architectural Institute
of Canada from 1994 to 2014 and a graduate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects from 1980 to 2014. Mr. Chan has over 17 years of
experience in the architecture sector and had worked as an architect, senior
architect or project manager in various architecture firms in London, United
Kingdom, Canada and Hong Kong from 1983 to 1999. Mr. Chan had also
been an independent non-executive Director of the Company from April
2010 to June 2013.

Mr. Li Long, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in September 2017. Mr. Li has over 26 years of experience in the
trading industry. Mr. Li has held managerial positions in various sizeable
corporations in the PRC from 1985 to 2013. He has mainly been responsible
for business development, marketing and financial management.

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2017. Mr. Choy obtained a master of
business administration degree from the University of Wales, Newport in
2004 and a master of business law degree from the Monash University in
2007. Mr. Choy was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln
University in 2019. Mr. Choy is a fellow member of each of the Institute of
Financial Accountants, the Institute of Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Institute of Compliance Officers. He is also a
member of the Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Choy has
extensive experience in the securities industry and has worked as a
responsible officer and representative in various securities companies in Hong
Kong. He is currently the vice chairman and a responsible officer of National
Resources Securities Limited for Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO and also the permanent honorable president and the vice
chairman of the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited. Mr. Choy is currently
an independent non-executive director of Luye Pharma Group Limited (stock
code: 2186), Sparkle Roll Group Limited (stock code: 0970) and Zhaojin
1818), all being limited
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an

Mining Industry Company Limited (stock code:

independent non-executive director of Chengdu PUTIAN Telecommunications
Cable Company Limited* (stock code: 1202), a limited company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February
2006 to January 2018. He was also an independent non-executive director of
Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8001), a limited

company whose shares are listed on GEM, from March 2010 to May 2016.

* For identification purpose only.
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OR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, aged 53, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is responsible for supervising the overall operation and
management and formulating market strategies of the Group. Mr. Tsang
obtained a master degree of business from the University of Newcastle,
Australia and a diploma in management studies jointly awarded by Lingnan
University and The Hong Kong Management Association. Mr. Tsang joined
the Group in August 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director in
April 2010. Following his resignation as an executive Director in September
2017, Mr. Tsang remains as the general manager of First Credit Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, overseeing the money lending
business of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 28 years’ experience in the
finance field specialising in the money lending industry.
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The Board is pleased to present this directors’ report (“Directors’ Report”)

Directors’ Report EEE R &
EFeMAREAEEHE-_S—\F+=2A
=t -RLFENAESeRE ((EEERED

and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018. All cross-references mentioned in this Directors’
Report forms part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. The Group
also conducts securities trading business for the provision of services in
relation to securities brokerage and investments in listed securities.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements from pages 81 to 86 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which became effective on 1
January 2019. The dividend policy aims at enhancing transparency of the
Company and facilitating the shareholders and investors of the Company to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company. As set out in
the dividend policy, the payment and the amount of any dividend depends
on a number of factors, including but not limited to the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position, the general economic conditions and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, and an indication of the likely future developments
of the Group’s business is provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” from pages 5 to 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
from pages 7 to 17 of this annual report. Description of matters that are
material for appreciation of the state of the Group’s affairs can be found
throughout this annual report.
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The Group’s business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group’s internal processes,
including but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud,
which may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business
operations and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will
result in interruption of the loan and securities trading operation of the
Group and potential leakage of confidential information. Operational risks
may also result from emergencies and unexpected events such as natural
hazards. In view of such risks, relevant operation policies and procedures
have been adopted and are in place to ensure that the daily operation of the
Group is in compliance with the relevant requirements of laws and
regulations, such as the MLO and the SFO. Internal reporting procedures
have been established and when any suspected case of employee misconduct
and/or fraud arises, any staff can report directly to the management. The
staff handbook has also stipulated that employee misconduct and fraud are
prohibited. The Group places considerable value on data security and data
privacy. The computer systems are secured with access controls, while
maintenance and update are conducted regularly by the information
technology services providers. Anti-virus softwares have been installed in all
computers in office.

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the

Group’s normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the
fluctuation of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of
the Group. Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to
meet their contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's
ability in maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The
above financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue
generated as well as impairment loss on loans receivable. Further discussion
about the financial risks is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements from pages 125 to 135 of this annual report. For credit risk in
respect of the loan portfolio, the Group has developed and adopted a set of
loan approval procedures and credit policy. The Group strives to maintain
sufficient cash and adequate funding available from its shareholders and
committed line(s) of funding from financial institution(s) and other entities.
To ensure the Group maintains sufficient capital and credit lines to meet its
liquidity requirements, the cash flows projection of the Group is reviewed on
a regular basis. For the securities trading business of the Group, the financial
resources are regularly reviewed to ensure that the financial reserve of the
Group can meet the liquid capital requirements under the relevant rules and

regulations.
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Directors’ Report ZE &5 (continued )

Market risks in  macroeconomic conditions and

fluctuation of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange

relate to the change

rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may
generally affect market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in
particular the customers of personal loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group's revenue. The Group would from time
to time fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures, in
particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group’s business and any future changes in the relevant laws and
regulations. Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may
bring various consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the
revocation or suspension of the money lenders licence, licence to carry on
Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under SFO and/or the
imposition of penalties resulting from an offence. The compliance committee
of the Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict
compliance of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable
to the Group. The Company has also adopted a compliance policy and
manual which governs the Company’s compliance matters in relation to the
MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant regulations. More
information about the compliance committee of the Company is set out in
the sub-paragraph headed “Compliance Committee” in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” from pages 30 to 31 of this annual report.
Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control”

in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from pages

32 to 34 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the
community and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the
environment caused by the operation of its business and enhancing its
influence among different stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an

environmental-friendly business mechanism across its operation.

The Group encourages treasuring and efficient use of natural resources such
as electricity, water and papers. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines
are provided to employees to facilitate the creation of a green workplace.
Employees are encouraged to use both sides of papers, recycled papers, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing setting when printing documents.
Also, the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 2,200 kg of
used papers were recycled during the year under review. The Group also
initiates to reduce waste on festive occasions.

For instance, it provided

“Green Christmas Tips” to staff for reducing packaging waste resulting from

Christmas presents.
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" in the Environmental, Social

and Governance Report from pages 61 to 69 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM. In light of this,
governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice

the Group upholds high corporate

complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on its money lending business and securities
trading business in Hong Kong which mainly include the MLO as well as the
SFO.

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and
money lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as
money lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest
rates and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money
lender in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the
MLO. The Group’s money lending business is subject to licensing
requirements. The money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court
and is renewable annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions.
Any non-compliance with the MLO and licensing conditions may result in
revocation or suspension of the money lenders licence, imposition of fines
and hindrance for future renewal of the money lenders licence, which may

have an adverse impact on the Group’'s money lending business.

The SFO regulates various securities related activities including dealing in
securities. Asia Wealth Securities is licensed for Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activity under the SFO. Being a licensed corporation under the SFO,
Asia Wealth Securities shall ensure, among other matters, that (i) it does not
provide any services or carry on any activities which is not within the
authorised scope of its licence; (i) any individual who carries on the
regulated activities must be duly licenced or authorised to do so; and (iii) it
shall comply with the relevant approval and notification obligations under the
SFO. In the event of any non-compliance with the SFO, the SFC has the
power to revoke or suspend the licence of the licenced corporation and
order payment of pecuniary penalty, which may have an adverse impact on

the Group’s securities trading business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there
has been no material breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a material impact on the business and operations of
the Group.
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Directors’ Report E2E TR S

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belonging to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance of
labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and hopes to maintain open communication

with the latter, which favours a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its employees

are set out in the paragraphs headed “Employees” in the Environmental,

Social and Governance Report from pages 59 to 61 of this annual report.
customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as
key to good relationship with customers and are reviewed from time to time
with the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and enhance
their satisfaction. The Group also strives to ensure that honest and
comprehensive information about its products is provided to customers so
that they can make appropriate informed decision. In addition, as a large
amount of personal and confidential information is handled and processed by
staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of customers’

personal privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in place.

While the Group is principally engaged in money lending business and
securities trading business, the scale of the former is larger. During the year
under review, the Group has maintained good relationship with its major
customers from the money lending business, including individuals and
corporations. The Group did not rely on any of its major customers as the
relevant revenue generated was not significant. During the year under
review, the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate accounted for
less than 20% of the revenue generated from the money lending business
of the Group. These customers were independent third parties from the
Group’s money lending business, among which two are individuals and the
other three are corporations. Two of these customers have fully settled their

respective loans by 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers ranged from 1 year to 3 years, which was negotiated on an
arm’s length basis with reference to the commercial practice and the
Group's credit policy. The top management of the Company will closely
monitor the loan portfolio, in particular the loans to major customers,
periodically and will continue to adopt risk control and management

strategies while broadening the Group’s customer base.

(continued &)
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\"; associates nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of

the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the five largest customers of the Group during the year.

Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office-
based, it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in
general. In other words, the Group’s suppliers are mainly those who provide
services supporting the daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning
service companies, office consumables suppliers and so on. The Group
therefore considers that the risk arising from cooperation with suppliers is
minimal. It is unlikely that the relationships with suppliers will bring
significant impact on the business operation of the Group as it is

comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether
the potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of
sustainable development will be considered. During the year under review
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has worked closely with
its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on
page 176 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme adopted by the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 or subsisted at the end of the year under
review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares or
debentures.
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Directors’ Report & 825 (continued &)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year under review are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year under review are set out in notes 32 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 84 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity holders comprised the contributed surplus amounting to approximately
HK$213.46 million.

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

During the vyear under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations and sponsorships amounting to approximately HK$554,000 (2017:
HK$934,000).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors of the Company during the year under review were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Sin Hung Maxim (Chairman) — appointed as an executive Director on
9 January 2018 and appointed as the Chairman
on 7 February 2018

Xie Si

Cao Huifang

Wong Kai Lun — appointed on 9 January 2018

Sin Kwok Lam — resigned as an executive Director and the Chairman on
7 February 2018

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fung Kam Man
Wang Zhiwei

Chan Tung Tak Alain
Li Long

Choy Sze Chung Jojo

BrREER

ARMASERELZYESEREARRAER

ERFERL A BETRNELCEERNTT -

ME- -BERKE

AEBREBEFENNYE BERRBEEEF
BENERE M B REM F19 -

&

AR MAEEREDEFEANEEEESFEHR
\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁwﬁwuﬁ$¢ﬁ%mﬁm
ERmEEER-

a1t 5K i 8

RZZ—NF+_A=+—8 ARXAAJ#HHIE

TREKAANBERBARSBEAN  £BOR
213,460,000/ 7T

BREER
REBTER AEEfELEERAMBRAR

B B)#7554,0008 70 (= ZF — 4 : 934,000/ 7T) °

EEREREEE
REBFERAAAEES :
WITES

ek (ER)— R
E%Eﬁﬁﬁ%%’
BEFEBFE

H 44

5=

s — R=F

BN — R=F—
REE

—NEFE—-HANA
PR-ZF-NF-HEH

—NF-ANAEZF
NEZRABEHTEE

BYFWTES

5 87 XX
ITE#%
BB
FE

BEBERAT ZT—N\FFER



The senior management of the Company during the year under review was
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, who is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out from pages 37 to 40 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years and each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of two years, all
being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance with the
Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s remuneration
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors, senior management
and employees of the Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages and constantly monitors the packages with reference to the
Company’s conditions and market situations. The remuneration package
generally includes fees or salary, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits
and so on. Emoluments payable to Directors are generally determined based
on the Group's operating results, individual performance and experience and
comparable market practices. Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Share Option Scheme was also adopted for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report & 825 (continued &)

UPDATE ON DIRECTOR’'S EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Mr. Li Long, one of the independent non-executive Directors, is currently
entitled to receive a director’'s fee of HK$10,000 per month, which was
determined by the Board with reference to his role, qualification, level of
experience, contribution to be made by him to the Company as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Mr. Li is also eligible to participate in the Share
Option Scheme.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective
close associates had any business or interests which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or had
any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had material interest (whether directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end
of the year under review or at any time during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in
force during the year under review and remained in force as at the date of
this annual report.
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(continued &)

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of

dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position.

Name Capacity

E2 Vg X 514

Xiao Guoliang Beneficial owner
HER EHERA

Ng Kam Lung Volais Beneficial owner
REHE ER#EEA

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who/which
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had not entered
into any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
was subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
related party transaction as disclosed in note 39(a) to the consolidated
financial statements during the year under review and the related party
transactions set out in note 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements
“connected transaction” or

did not constitute “continuing connected

transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” from pages 18 to 36 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report.
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(continued &)

During the year under review, RSM was appointed as the auditors of the
Company by the shareholders the AGM held on 28 June 2018. RSM
resigned as the auditors of the Group with effect from 20 December 2018,
as the Company and RSM were unable to agree on the audit fee for the
2018. The Board, with the
recommendation of the audit committee, has appointed Elite Partners as the
new auditors of the Group with effect from 20 December 2018 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of RSM and to hold office until the

financial year ending 31 December

conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint Elite Partners
as the auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Sin Hung Maxim
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
("ESG Guide") set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2018. This ESG Report highlights
the initiatives and efforts of the Company and its key subsidiaries (including
First Credit Limited and Asia Wealth Securities) in the commitment to
sustainable development and corporate social responsibility in the course of
their principal business of money lending and securities trading. For the sake
of materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are
not relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report.
The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in
the ESG Guide for the year ended 31 December 2018.

MISSION STATEMENT

Engaging in the finance industry in Hong Kong, the Group recognises the
rising importance of its corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and role in
sustainable development of the community. CSR is not empty talk. The
Group has put considerable efforts in exploring different possibilities to
enhance its positive impacts to the community in economic, environmental,
social aspects and so on throughout the past year. The following shows the
five major areas of concern that the Group emphasises and strives to
improve:

Economy

58

Customers

R

4

.y

Environment
b

In pursuing various objectives, the Group adopts a balanced approach to
consider all the above areas of concern on a case-by-case basis.
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When designing business practice and making business decisions across its
operations, the Group takes the following general principles into account:

— Economy: acts as a socially responsible economic contributor in the
community; upholds high corporate governance standards and strives
to comply with all relevant ordinances and regulations;

— Customers: provides customer-oriented solutions and quality services to
customers; respects and protects customers’ personal data privacy and
security;

— Employees: promotes equal opportunities and combats any kind of
discrimination; provides a safe and healthy working environment to
employees;

— Environment: adopts the Three R’s principles (i.e. reduce, reuse and
recycle); minimises its carbon footprint and considers cost-

environmental-friendly products and services; and

— Community: encourages social commitment in any practicable ways;
enhances the positive impacts of the Group to the community.

The above general principles shall be embedded into the Group’s operation

as they relate to its different stakeholders as well as different business
decisions and practices.
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH
CSR STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Review and discuss on the

The Board
EEE

effectiveness of CSR mechanism

Approve/amend CSR-related policies

Compliance
Committee

BREEE

Review and discuss on the effectiveness
and compliance of CSR-related policies
and measures with applicable laws and
regulations

Report findings and make
recommendations to the Board

CSR Workforce
LEHESETEEK

Introduce, facilitate and monitor
implementation of CSR-related
policies and measures

Conduct review on the CSR
commitment and performance of the
Group

Report findings and make
recommendations to Compliance
Committee
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Key Subsidaries/
Branches/Departments
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Incorporate relevant policies and
guidelines into daily business
operation

The CSR commitment of the Group involves participation of every employee
from every key subsidiary, branch and department. Policies and guidelines
covering areas such as business operations manual, compliance, staff
working environment and welfare, recruitment and so on are established and
incorporated into day to day operations of the Group.

A corporate social responsibility workforce (“CSR Workforce”) is established
to introduce and facilitate implementation of CSR-related policies and
measures. It ensures that employees are well-informed of any introductions
of or amendments to the CSR-related policies and measures. It also takes the
major role of monitoring and providing assistance to employees where
necessary during implementation of the CSR measures.

In addition, the CSR Workforce facilitates an open dialogue with different
stakeholders and is responsive to any changes in the regulatory factors and
market prevailing situations. Annual review is conducted regarding the CSR
commitment and performance of the Group based on all external and
internal information gathered.
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s “on the findings in its annual review, the CSR Workforce makes
~fecommendations and suggestions to the compliance committee of the
Group, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim
to enhance CSR mechanism and policies of the Group.

ECONOMY
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group upholds high corporate governance standards and strives to
ensure that its business practice complies with all relevant laws and
regulations in the jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes
and will evaluate the need to amend its existing policies and practice from
time to time. Details of the Group’s corporate governance structure and
practices are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”

from pages 18 to 36 of this annual report.
ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

Engaging in the money lending business, employees have to deal with money
transactions in the Group’s day to day operation. Potential risks regarding
improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees cannot
be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption, fraud, anti-money
laundering (“AML") and counter-terrorist financing etc. are established and
stated to all staff. As part of the loan approval process, the Group will carry
out appropriate customer due diligence procedures which are critical
measures to assess and monitor the risk of money laundering. Details of
customer due diligence measures are set out in the Company’s credit policy
and operational manual.

Measures regarding monitoring and reporting of suspicious cases are also
implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the money
lending business of the Group. Any suspicious case of money laundering or
terrorist financing which comes to the staff's knowledge will be reported to
the management immediately. Should there be any suspicion found, the
Company will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong
Kong Government. Risk assessment on money laundering would be
conducted periodically to assist the Group in the management and control of

the money laundering risk.
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No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified during the year under review. The Group did not receive any
whistleblowing reports from its employees during the year as well. There
were also no confirmed incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery,
corruption, fraud or money laundering against the laws of Hong Kong during
the year under review. The Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering for the year 2018.

ENGAGEMENT WITH SUPPLIERS

Suppliers of the Group are mainly service providers who provide services
supporting the daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning service
companies and office consumable suppliers.

In order to build up cooperation relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines were established and adopted to
outline the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors
with an aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to
safeguard the welfare of the workers, the community and the environment.
The criteria include application of environmentally-friendly principles,
protection of workers’ human rights, safety and health by the suppliers and

SO on.

During 2018, the risk of suppliers bringing significant negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is negligible and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers
regarding environmental and labour protection.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products is
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group puts
emphasis on quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of
staff are encouraged to give prompt response and provide best assistance to
customers.

In June 2018, a new note entitled “To borrow a loan — what you must
know” (“New Note"”) and certain revised forms were introduced by the CR.
To ensure that each and every intending borrower is well-informed of the
New Note before or after entering into a loan agreement with the Company,
a copy of the New Note has been displayed in a conspicuous place of the
Company. The relevant forms are under review by the Company's legal
adviser to fulfill the CR’s requirements.

Besides, an additional licensing condition implemented by the CR in October
2018 requires a money lender to obtain the written consent of the referee in
respect of a loan application before entering into any loan agreement with
the intending borrower. The relevant procedures and documents are under
review by the Company’s legal adviser to ensure compliance with the

licensing condition.

For the year under review and up to the date of this ESG Report, no

material breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
regarding the business and operations of the Group is found. In particular,
the Group adhered to the applicable laws regulating its principal businesses
of money lending and securities trading i.e. MLO and SFO. In respect of
advertising, the Group complied with the additional licensing conditions
imposed on money lenders which came into effect in December 2016 and
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to

advertising.
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DATA PRIVACY

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data. Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations. Guidelines
regarding the handling of confidential information are provided to staff to
enhance information security in business operations and across branches.
Statement for collection of personal data is provided to customers before
collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to handle any requests from customers for access to and correction of
personal data.

No issue regarding material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations mentioned above was identified or reported during the year
under review. In particular, no incidents regarding infringement of
customers’ privacy or loss of customer data were found. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant

impact on the Group relating to privacy matters.

EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
Candidates with

different qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the

opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters.
labour base. The recruitment policy of the Group sets out a transparent
mechanism and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to
child and forced
opportunity and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that criteria such as

labour prevention, recruitment and promotion, equal
age, gender, marital status, nationality, race or religious belief should not be
considered in the candidates screening process so as to ensure equal
treatment to all applicants. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in
the Group.

During 2018, no complaints were received regarding child or forced labour,
unfair treatment or discrimination during the recruitment and promotion
process.
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The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. A
caring workplace helps enhance employees’ sense of belonging.
Comprehensive guidelines and procedures regarding human resources
including but not limited to recruitment, workings hours, rest periods as well
as compensation are established. Employees who commit misconducts or
violate company rules may be dismissed according to the Group's dismissal
policy. In addition to maternity leave, paternity leave and condolence leave,
employees are entitled to have birthday leave, which shows the Group's
emphasis on its relationships with employees. To promote a breastfeeding-
friendly work environment, the Group has also joined the ‘Say Yes to
Breastfeeding’ campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with the
Food and Health Bureau of the Department of Health. Moreover, staff events
are held regularly. For the year under review, staff events such as visits to
National Arts Studios and the Ocean Park were organized for employees’
team building, with the aim to unite all employees and create a harmonious

working environment.

During 2018, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group relating to employee’s compensations
and dismissal, working hours and rest periods.

SAFE AND HEALTHY WORKING ENVIRONMENT

A business contingency plan is in place to protect the Group from possible
threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster and to define the
recovery process developed to restore the critical business functions of the
Group. The Group strives to create a safe working environment as
recommended by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong.
For instance, computer workstations for employees are designed in the way
that will help alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort
resulting from inappropriate postures. Reading materials in relation to the
occupational safety and health have been circulated to all employees to
ensure they are equipped with updated knowledge in this regard. All
employees are involved in creating a working environment that is free of
discrimination and harassment, which can reduce employees’ work stress.
Discrimination is prohibited in any circumstances. Reporting channel is also
provided for staff who feels they are being treated unfairly.
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For the year under review, there were no incidents found in relation to
occupational health and safety. Given the nature of the Group’s money
lending and securities related business, the Group considers the risk of
employees working under health and safety threats to be insignificant. The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to the
provision of a safe working environment and protection of employees from
occupational hazards for the year 2018.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their
duties. Staff training is conducted every year to ensure employees are well-
informed of the policies of the Group. Reading materials in relation to
business ethics and anti-corruption have been circulated to all staff, so as to
enhance employees’ understanding in anti-bribery and anti-corruption. A self-
development sponsorship policy is also in place to encourage continuous
learning and development of staff by providing financial supports to nurture
talents and explore various potentials of staff.

More details of the staff training of the Company are set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Information on Employees”
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 16 of this annual report.

in the section headed

In view of the latest Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money Lenders issued
by the CR, AML training was delivered to the Directors during 2018, so as to
ensure that the Directors are equipped with the latest knowledge of the
regulatory development of AML in Hong Kong.

ENVIRONMENT
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. The
Group is committed to minimising greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission as it
knows that problems of global warming should never be overlooked. The
Group therefore implements various measures on GHG emission reduction. In
a digitalised community, the Group encourages paperless culture when and
where practicable such as to communicate and circulate documents via
emails. The Group also welcomes video or telephone conference so as to
reduce the need of business trips of the staff. The Group encourages its staff
to take public transport and requires employees to turn off the electronic
appliances that are not in use before they get off from work.
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Is issued by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, GHG
emissions can be divided into three different scopes, namely (1) direct
emission, (2) energy indirect emission and (3) other indirect emission. For
calculating GHG emissions, SME Carbon Audit Toolkit (“Toolkit”) invented
by the University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong is
designed for the use by small and medium enterprises. Considering the scale
of the Group’s business, the emission factors of the Toolkit are considered
suitable and are adopted in calculating the GHG emissions of the Group that
are disclosed in this ESG Report. Even though the Toolkit was established in
2011, the Group considers that the potential inaccuracies due to time factor
cause only minor influence on the results. Apart from the Toolkit, other
external resources extracted from authorised institutions are also adopted in
calculating the GHG emission of the Group. Considering the business nature
of the Group, GHG emissions stated in this ESG Report in relation to the
respective consumption by the key subsidiaries and branches are calculated in
the unit of kilogram of carbon dioxide in equivalent (“kg Co, eq-"), or in
kilogram (“kg").

Direct emission means the direct emission of GHG from the operations that
are owned or controlled by the Group. The Group's principal businesses are
money lending and securities trading. In other words, the main operation of
the Group is office-based and hence it generally does not lead to significant
direct emission of GHG. The only cause of direct emission of GHG in the
Group's operation was from using vehicles which run on petrol. The volume
of direct emission of GHG by types caused by the Group's use of vehicles
during the year under review, together with the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2017, is as follows:
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Direct Emission (Note 1)

ERESER (e
2017 (In kg) 7Ak R ) Percentage Change
e LA O — B — )\ (A FT) BAOLES
Nitrogen oxides (“NO,") [A (INO, ) 0.70 2.51 258.57%
Sulphur dioxide (“S0O,") —&1eH([s0,]) 0.14 0.49 250%
Particulate matter (“PM") R PM ) 0.05 0.18 260%
Note 1: The emission factors of NO,, SO, and PM by vehicle extracted from Appendix P31 : BIRFRREDEIRERIESI M Rz

2 to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs are 0.0147g/l, 0.0147g/l
and 0.0055g/km respectively.
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The significant increase in the direct emission of GHG during the year under
review is mainly attributed to the use of an additional vehicle which was
newly purchased by the Group in 2018. For the year under review, the
amount of petrol used for the Group’s vehicles increased by approximately
279.17% from approximately 840 litres (which equals to approximately
2,275 kg CO, December 2017 to
approximately 3,185 litres (which equals to approximately 7,516 kg CO, eg-
of GHG emission) as at 31 December 2018.

eq- of GHG emission) as at 31

Apart from direct emission of GHG, the Group's operation also leads to
indirect emissions of GHG caused by energy consumption. Indirect emissions
include emissions resulting from the generation of electricity, as well as the
heating and cooling systems. The Group generates energy indirect emissions
of GHG through consumption of electricity in offices and warehouse, which
include the Central Main Branch, Causeway Bay Branch, Foreign Loan Centre
("FLC"), Mongkok Branch, office of Asia Wealth Securities and Kwun Tong
Warehouse. For the year under review, the total GHG emission resulting
from electricity consumption decreased by approximately 23.41% from
approximately 61,446kg CO, eg- as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
47,063kg CO, eqg- as at 31 December 2018. The decrease in GHG emission
resulting from electricity consumption is mainly attributed to the closure of
the Causeway Bay Branch and the Mongkok Branch.

The volume of indirect emissions of GHG caused by electricity consumption
by the Group during the year under review, together with the comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2017, is as follows:
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Indirect Emissions caused by
Electricity Consumption (Note 1)

ENHREELEN
BEREEEHER ()
2017 2018
(kg CO, eq-) (kg CO, eq-)
(Note 2) (Note 2)
—+ —E-\E§
(A =& 1bHx (AR =& L%
g 8-)(faE2) EE-)(KE2)
Central Main Branch FIRBIT 24,135 18,053
Causeway Bay Branch and FLC (Note 3) WEESITRINEAT
B (M EE3) 15,304 6,799
Mongkok Branch (Note 4) A5 7T (MEE4) 5,678 1,432
Asia Wealth Securities and FLC (Note 5) DNBIEE S RINEAL
B (i EEs) 15,508 20,778
Kwun Tong Warehouse BEeE 821 1
Total: @zt - 61,446 47,063
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The data of 2017 was calculated with the Toolkit. However, as the
emission factor of China Light and Power Company Limited (“CLP") was
not up-to-date in the Toolkit, the latest emission factor of CLP was
extracted from the CLP sustainable report of 2017 in calculating the data
of 2018. The emission factors are 0.79 kg CO, per unit for electricity
supplied by Hong Kong Electric Company and 0.50 kg CO, per unit for
the electricity supplied by CLP.

Electricity consumption generates various types of GHG, including carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions stated above are
calculated in the unit of kg CO, eg- produced in relation to the
respective consumption by the relevant subsidiary and branch.

Causeway Bay Branch was closed down in July 2018 and the office premise
of FLC was merged with the office premise of Asia Wealth Securities
starting from July 2018. Hence, the data of Causeway Bay Branch and
FLC only shows electricity consumption until July 2018.

The operation of Mongkok Branch has ceased in June 2018. Hence, only
the data from January 2018 to June 2018 for Mongkok Branch is
shown.

The office premise of FLC was merged with the office premise of Asia
Wealth Securities starting from July 2018. Hence, the data after July
2018 represented both the data of Asia Wealth Securities and FLC.

Other indirect emission of GHG includes the emission resulting from waste

disposal, water consumption and the transportation of staff etc. The volume

of other indirect emissions of GHG generated by the Group during the year

under review, together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31

December 2017, is as follows:
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Other Indirect Emissions

Waste Disposal (Note 2) BEMEE (ME2)
Water Consumption (Note 3) FEK (M FE3)
Transportation of Staff (Note 4) & 8 223 (Mt 5t4)
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H fth e B2 HE
2017 2018
(kg CO2 eqg-) (kg CO, eq-)
(Note 1)
== tF(2F =t llS ¢
—EbiEE- —HILHREE-)
(P aE1)
3,116 2,988
N/A N/A
T iE A A EH
1,807 1,577



Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:
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The Toolkit is used to calculate the indirect emission of GHG by the Group.

Waste disposal includes paper and general office waste. Owing to practical
reasons, the data of waste disposal is presented in estimated figures. The
estimation is done by taking the data of one week as a sample for
waste disposal.

Data of water consumption is not available since the Group operates in
leased office premises of which both water supply and consumption are
solely controlled by the building management office. The provision of
water consumption data or sub-meter for individual occupants is not
feasible.

Due to incomplete record, data of transportation of staff in 2017
comprised actual and estimated figures.

For the year under review, the intensity of GHG emissions was maintained at

a low level and remained steady as compared to the corresponding period in

2017. Given that the principal businesses of the Group are office-based, the

unit of square feet (“sq. feet”) is used as a factor in calculating the intensity

of GHG emissions.

The intensity of GHG emissions generated by the Group during the year

under review, together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31

December 2017, is as follows:
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GHG Emissions in Intensity

BERBHEREE
2017 2018
(kg CO, eq-/ (kg CO, eq-/
sg. feet) sq. feet)
—tE (A7 E=tEVE-ACN:
—Ski=E- W=tKd 34
FHR) EFHR)
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions WET — BEEHER 0.24 0.80
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions #[E2 — BY R B 5.58 4.27
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions #[E3 — Hth E BN 0.52 0.49
Total: “BEt - 6.34 5.56
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As the principal businesses of the Group are office-based, no hazardous
waste as defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary
Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their disposal, 1989" was produced
during the year under review. Meanwhile, the Group strives to promote
recycling habits among the employees. Staff members are also encouraged to
re-use office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes. The
Group implements policies to enhance employees’ awareness of waste
separation and recycling. In 2018, the weight of used paper collected for
recycling exceeds 2,200 kg, implying a contribution of over 10,600 kg GHG
reductions.

In 2018, FLC was relocated to new office premises and Causeway Bay
Branch and Mongkok Branch were closed down. All construction wastes
generated by relocation and closure of FLC and Causeway Bay Branch were
transported, handled and disposed of in accordance with the Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Chapter 354, Laws of Hong Kong) and the relevant regulations,
so as to minimise the impact of such waste on the environment.

For the year under review, the amount of non-hazardous waste generated by
the Group remained steady as compared to the corresponding period in
2017.

The amount of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during the year
under review, together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2017, is as follows:
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Non-Hazardous Waste (Note 1)

|EREY (M E1)
2017 2018
—T—+tF —F—N\E
In kg In kg/sq. feet In kg In kg/sq. feet
AT RDF/FEAER A2F AR/ FAHR
Central Main Branch IR AT 864 0.18 1,080 0.23
Causeway Bay Branch and FLC $RSEE DT RINEATER
(Note 2) AR (T EE2) 120 0.10 168 0.15
Mongkok Branch (Note 2) it 5517 (M 5E2) 168 0.18 144 0.16
Asia Wealth Securities and DMBIEEHFRINMEATER
FLC (Note 3) A0 (B EE3) 925 0.36 600 0.23
Total: @zt 2,077 0.22 1,992 0.21
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Note 1: Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste is
presented in estimated figures. The estimation is done by taking

the data of one week as a sample for non-hazardous waste.

Note 2: Causeway Bay Branch was closed down in July 2018 and the
office premise of FLC was merged with the office premise of
Asia Wealth Securities starting from July 2018. Hence, the data
of Causeway Bay Branch and FLC only shows generation of
waste until July 2018. Besides, Mongkok Branch was closed

down in June 2018.

Note 3: The office premise of FLC merged with the office premise of Asia

Wealth Securities starting from July 2018.

During 2018, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
relating to GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, or generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature and it
encourages efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption. The Group
pledged to support Earth Hour by turning off all non-essential lights for one
hour on 23 March 2018 and encouraged all staff members to do so on 24
March 2018 at home. Employees are encouraged to turn off lights and
electronic appliances that are not in use after business hours. Room
temperature in office is kept at a reasonable level. Office consumables such
as light bulbs and stationary shall be replaced or purchased only when
necessary in order to avoid wastage.

The Group's business is office-based and it merely involves normal daily
water consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose for the Group’s operation as the water supply is managed by
the building management office. Employees are reminded to turn off water
faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of water conservation are placed
at a conspicuous position near the sinks to remind employees to save water.
all these habits can

As the saying goes, “many a little makes a mickle”,

bring significant impacts to our environment.

As the Group is not engaged in manufacturing business, its operation does
not involve the use of packaging materials.
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December 2017, is as follows:

AEBRRBEFENNERBERLEKE &R
BE-T—+tF+-A=+—PALLFENLEHR
FOT:

Electricity and Water Consumption

HERFEK
2017 2018
—T—tF —E—N\F
Unit  Unit/sq. feet Unit Unit/sq. feet
AE BF¥ARAE=E AE S¥FRAE
Electricity Consumption HE(TRE)
(kWh in’000s) 76,368 6.93 60,626 5.50
Water Consumption (Note 1) FE/K (Ff#E1) N/A N/A
TiE A ~ER
Total: FE 76.368 6.93 60,626 5.50
Note 1: Data of water consumption is not available since the Group operates in  [ff 51 : AR AEE L LR E A ST AK
leased office premises for which both water supply and consumption are HEREREREFTERRES - HREE
solely controlled by the building management office. The provision of R FAKEUIR - IREEFEKE R 3 BAUKER
water consumption data or sub-meter for individual occupants is not AEEABRPRAKEL AT
feasible.
ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES RELRAER

Being a financial institution, most business operations of the Group involve
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment and
natural resources resulting from the Group’s operation except from the
printing of loan documents and internal documents that can result in the
consumption of a large amount of printing papers. The Group therefore
emphasises on minimising paper use such as promoting the use of double-
sided printing and recycling non-confidential used paper. To enhance
environmental awareness of the staff not just within the office, but also in
everyday life, the Group also provides some environmentally friendly tips to
employees such as “Green Christmas Tips” for reducing the waste of
packaging materials and food resulting from Christmas presents and meals.
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The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on its emission

and the use of resources, including electricity consumption, water
consumption, discharges of hazardous and non-hazardous solid waste to
quantify the Group’s achievements in terms of its measures on emission and
waste reduction and use of resources efficiency initiatives. Owing to the
closure of the Causeway Bay Branch and the Mongkok Branch and the
relocation of the FLC in 2018, the Group recorded a decrease in the use of
resources and the volume of GHG emissions during the year under review.
The management considers that the overall results of the environmental
protection measures are satisfactory and the Group will continue to make

contributions to the environmental protection.

COMMUNITY
SUPPORT SOCIAL SERVICE ORGANISATION

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations should be recognised
and supported. The Group sponsored the Hong Kong Down Syndrome
Association in October 2018. The Group will also explore possibilities to
cooperate with different organisations that share the same values and
principles with the Group.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social
involvement and civic consciousness. The Group established the First Credit
Volunteering Team, which participated in a volunteer service organized by
the Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association in December 2018. Employees
are also encouraged to participate in community enhancement events such as
volunteering and fundraising activities.

AWARDS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received the award of
Caring Company (2017/18) from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
which represents a recognition of the team efforts paid by the Group on
CSR.

DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain opportunities for open dialogue relating
to CSR matters with various stakeholders from time to time. The Group
values every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders in order to
improve its existing CSR policies and practice. Stakeholders may write directly
to the Group’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 21/F.-22/F., Fung
House, Nos. 19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to
feedback and

“enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk” for any inquiries,

recommendation regarding CSR-related issues.

AEEREBRRERERER BREEEE
BKE BIRETREBEZTEREYMETRFIR
LL8 - ARAE AR S B A R PE RO RE HE pE A ) B
RERKBIEETEORE - R _F—\F H
RIABEEDITHNEADITREMARINE A LER
POME REBEFEALAEEEREMRMEE
AERINMESHE TR EEERSBRBERER
REARRSTARNBERAKRERGERENRRTIE
HER -
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S Ak I AR 7 4 4

AR AR S AR AN B R 3 ) FE AR S B D A e
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BoHEREREEEREIDZ

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT : HERY

General Disclosure

—RiRE

Information on:

BT :

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHBITARE
Bley &

FENBRERER

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
BHRERIOREREHR - MK R e
FCRAEREEEDNELS

ESG Report:

RE HEREEmE:

“Environment — Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Control & Waste Disposal and Recycling”
(pages 61 to 67)

(R — REREBHRUEHREDEE R
BIREAIEEET7E)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EmEA2 : BRER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials
BREAER(BIEER - KREAMRME) K
B

ESG Report:
RE #HeRkEamsE:

“Environment — Use of Resources”
(pages 67 to 68)
[IRIE — BRFEAI(FE67E E68H)

EEA3 : RERRAEIR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure

—RiKE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources
BERBETAHRREERAERERBEAZEN
285

ESG Report:
RE HEgREROWRSE

“Environment — Environmental and Natural
Resources” (pages 68 to 69)
[IRIE — BRERRAERI(F68H £698)
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Aspect B1: Employment

BB : (&
General Disclosure Information on: ESG Report:
—REE AT RE HeakERmE:

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHBFETARE
5018y & #

FEMBREER

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare

ERAFMERE BERSHA  TERE K
BEE - FTE#RE  Zolt RE\UKEA
8 g Al BIR Mg RERRE

"Employees — Employment Opportunities &
Caring Workplace” (pages 59 to 60)

[BE — EE®ELBENTEREI(E59
HZE60H)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EMEB2 : BREZ S

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Information on:

BT

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHBEITARE
Bl ey &

FEMNBRERER

relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards
ERRHZE2THERERREESE B EMN
BE

ESG Report:
BE HeakEhmE:

"Employees — Safe and Healthy Working
Environment” (pages 60 to 61)

[BE — X2 REERMIERIRI(FE0ER
618)

E-—EREBREEERAR —T-NFFH
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

[BmEB3 : & RiF

ﬁ/_—:.): (continued 1&)

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
BHRAEERT IEREMNMB R RN
= o

Description of training activities
I 15 F1E B

ESG Report:
WY M EREREE

"Employees — Professional Development”
(page 61)
B8 — BX#RI(F61H)

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHB4 : 4 T 48|

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Information on:

AR

(a) the policies; and

(a) SR K&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEAZENBBEERELR
189 & #t

relating to preventing child and forced labour

BRAP IEE T4 T

ESG Report:
RE #HekEams:

"Employees — Employment Opportunities”
(page 59)
[EE — EREEI(FE598)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain management

[ETHB5 : TR

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain
FIRHERARIR R G AR BUR

ESG Report:
WY M B RERRE

“Economy — Engagement with Suppliers”
(page 57)
[ — ZEHERI(FE578)

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (28 Tt @R E B ES (continved &)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

PR

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) EFHETARE
B89 & #

FEMNBREERER

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of
redress

EHRMRHEMNBRENREEEZ S BE -
EHERALBET AR A

ESG Report:
RE HeakERmE:

“Customers — Products and Services & Data
Privacy” (pages 58 to 59)

[BF — EMERBERERTLEI(E882
59H)

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EHEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:

BT :

—
Q
=

the policies; and

BE R

—
Q
=

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEAXZENHERERLA
18 &k

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering

FHBE 95 RFRERE

ESG Report:
RE #HERELGWmE:

"Economy — Anti-Money Laundering”
(page 56) and; “Employees — Professional
Development” (page 61)

M8 — oA BEI(ES6H)  RIES
— EXBRI(F61H)

E-—EREBREEERAR —T-NFFH
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General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on community engagement to

understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities takes into consideration communities’
interests

AU ESERTHREEMTHETEME
REEBEDAEZ R RFROEE

ﬁt:.,: (continued &)

ESG Report:
RE HeaRERmE:

“Community” (page 69)
[H[@ |(F698)
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Independent Auditor’s Report B 1L &% ZEI K =

elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 81 to 175, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

"HKICPA"”) and have been properly

Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matters we identified and how our audit addressed
the key audit matters are set out below.

BE—ERAEREEFRATRR

(RESHEZMATIEREREFEZHERA
a])

=R

Az (A T EBIE M) BB EHRESE
ZEI7CEE—GFREBEEFRAR(TEAT))
FEWBAR(EREDOKEMBRE LR
EUBHREAPIER=_ZE—/\F+=-_A=+—BH
RAEMBRARURBEZB LFENGE B
REMEHBAR SERGEHRNGEES
MEXR URGEEVMBHREWNTE  BEXTESH
BRE R E A FEEER -

EERL  ZEHAMBMRCRIEB B M
Ag((BEREEAMAED RG22 E BB REE
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Key audit matters

BT SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EENBETNEIEEREEGSEE

Impairment of loans receivable from customers

FE W & & =R B

(Refer to notes 6(B) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements)

(2[4 6 B 5 # & 7 it6(B) 2 24)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group's accounting for loan loss impairment by replacing HKAS
39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (“ECL") approach.
BEMBRELENIOFBUARELRBEERX((HHERE
KRDEBREBEBSFEABIZELEEFERE  MEKAEBIT KR
EHEAPEEAR FHEAEEERERNEN SRR -

The measurement of ECL requires the application of significant

judgement and increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models (for
exposures assessed individually or collectively), such as the
expected future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.
BHEERANAEEREAERABFE MMERE E8
FHRANGEEEERERLNE URBHEERLAREHEH
WERR(BEFSIEBTENER)  FINBEHNRKREREMN
AIEMERN ERBEBERZE -

Due to the significance of loans receivable (representing
approximately 95% of total assets) and the corresponding
uncertainty inherent in such estimates, we considered this as a
key audit matter.

HREREFERBBEERN (WIEREES% ) REAMGTHE
EIRBEME  HMRB AU —HERESAFE -
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Our audit procedures included the assessment of controls
over the origination, segmentation, ongoing internal credit
quality assessments, recording and monitoring of loans
receivable.

B EREFEETHERRERNESE o
NEEEE BT REREBERES -

BRE

We also assessed the effectiveness of key controls over the
application of the impairment methodology, the governance
of the ECL models, inputs and assumptions used by the
Group in calculating the ECL.

HAIIRAHE T BARESIE RS EARES S BHEEE
AEANER X EEEEFERAEERLSERNEA
FRR B RN
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
FARETSEIE EEETINTEEARETEIR

For the collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the
reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models, including the
model input, model design, model performance for
significant portfolios. We assessed the reasonableness of the
Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment. We challenged whether historical
experience is representative of current circumstances and of
the recent losses incurred in the portfolios and assessed the
reasonableness of forward-looking adjustments, including
the economic variables and assumptions used in each of the
economic scenarios and their probability weightings. Where
changes had been made in model parameters and
assumptions, we evaluated the appropriateness of such
changes. We also assessed and tested the sensitivity of the
credit loss provisions to changes in modelling assumptions.
MERAENEHEERLIM S HMFAET E£EE
HEERIARANGEY  BEEAREEGHEXBA
BEARALEXARR - HMAAET EEETREERR
EREREENBECREENBBEREFRAEHEE
BREEAEREMTENKRENSEL - RMEATE
CTRBESRXEINEAARKRELAEPROZEENIE
K-WAABTRAREERENSGRELE  EEERBREERER
EANKREZERBRELREMEREE - HEA2HEMEREK
EFEEES  MRMIBZSEECOEE N - HMTAMG
WHHATEAEIERBHEERRED BRI -

For a sample of exposures that was subject to an individual
impairment assessment, we specifically reviewed the
Group's assumptions on the expected future cash flows,
including the value of realisable collateral based on
available market information.

HERREFEOEATS  KMASENT E5EHY
BEHRERENRR  BEEXRTHAGSNEFRATER
BE-

We also assessed disclosures in the financial statements
relating to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

BFAAEE BEEENEERREENY B RRKE -

F—ER2REEAERAR —T-N\FFH
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information in the Company’s 2018 annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {FE8 ER R EM 2 EHAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017
—ET—tF
Note HK$
B 5 87T
Revenue g 2§ 9 92,761,498 116,186,005
Other income E A4 A 10 6,169,523 2,931,746
Other gains and losses E bz RSB 11 1,192,286 14,542,347
100,123,307 133,660,098
Impairment loss on goodwill AmEREEE — (1,423,124)
Administrative expenses THAX (33,726,940) (43,846,860)
Impairment loss on loans receivable JE U B SRR (B & 1B (15,634,421) (2,586,317)
Other operating expenses Hfh 48 & 5 2 (17,579,199) (12,236,221)
Profit from operations EERF 33,182,747 73,567,576
Finance costs HBEM 12 (1,582,846) (9,391,129)
Profit before tax B Bt i it F 13 31,599,901 64,176,447
Income tax expense FrigBi M 14 (5,674,308) (11,270,017)
Profit for the year 5 i A 25,925,593 52,906,430
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hih2mEig A (0BRBIIE)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: ] §EE #1548 2 18 7 A
EHH -
— Fair value gain on available-for-sale — A EERmEEY
financial assets AR R € — 83,252
— Release of investment revaluation reserve — BB R Asia
upon completion of the step acquisition Wealth Financial
of Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited Holdings Limited
("Asia Wealth") ([ Asia Wealth |)
TERIERBRKRES
i {5 48 — (83,252)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EWKANEE 25,925,593 52,906,430
Profit and total comprehensive income for LITF A TREIEER R
the year attributable to: 2EANBE:
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEF =N 25,925,593 53,177,690
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR HE 2 — (271,260)
25,925,593 52,906,430
HK cents HK cents
&AW AL
Earnings per share BREH
Basic AR 18 0.71 1.47
Diluted #E 18 N/AFEHR N/A 3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& 84 5 iR i |

At 31 December 2018 R-—ZE—N\FE+_-_A=+—8H

2017
—E—+F
Note HK$
Bt 5 & T
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BKE RE 19 3,088,135 6,578,552
Leasehold land under finance leases MERAAOTHE L H 20 1,241,628 1,285,161
Goodwill mE 21 — —
Intangible assets — trading right ERVEE — E5%E 22 3,100,000 3,100,000
Loans receivable JE U4 & 7 24 433,645,920 346,022,026
Other assets HihEE 200,000 200,000
Deferred tax assets FEEFR A B 30 3,107,251 872,748
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 444,382,934 358,058,487
Current assets HENEE
Loans receivable JE U B R 24 507,870,528 533,846,738
Accounts receivable JE Lt B 3R 25 — 4,252,258
Financial assets at fair value through A TFEFABRD
profit or loss EHMEE 26 — 21,925,350
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - Re Rk
H h g e FIE 3,122,098 19,587,475
Current tax assets MBMBEE 2,728,082 —
Bank balances — trust and segregated accounts R{T4&# — E7L &
BERP 27 159,149 803,343
Bank and cash balances RITRBER 37,355,748 202,020,501
Total current assets MEEEMLE 551,235,605 782,435,665
Current liabilities HREBERE
Accounts payable JE AR K 28 159,149 793,623
Accruals and other payables FEET B R K H fth FE 5 5KIE 2,715,503 19,890,077
Interest-bearing loans ST EE X 29 — 150,000,000
Current tax liabilities BN B BB 295,937 3,648,488
Total current liabilities mE A EEE 3,170,589 174,332,188
Net current assets MEEEFE 548,065,016 608,103,477
Total assets less current liabilities BELBBERAHERE 992,447,950 966,161,964
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #7 S 87 5% A 5T 3% (continued )
At 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—N\&FE+=-_HA=+—H

2017
—ZE—tF
Note HK$
B 2 BT
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE 30 — 269,194
Total non-current liabilities ERE A EARE — 269,194
NET ASSETS BEFHE 992,447,950 965,892,770
Capital and reserves BEAREE
Share capital A& 2 31 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves R 33 919,871,950 893,316,770
TOTAL EQUITY S 992,447,950 965,892,770

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and are signed on its
behalf by:

RZTE-—hF=ZA-+t-_AKE=GHE TH

THEERREE:

Li Sin Hung Maxim
Fipst
Director

EE

Wong Kai Lun
=R R
Director

2
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity {6 X B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FATRENES
Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
relating
to assets Proposed Non-

Share Share Capital Contributed  classified as  Retained final  controlling

capital  premium reserve surplus  held for sale profits  dividend interests
W5 EE
REHEZE
REBZEHA
REMER
By EXRE ERzeE RERT EEARGRE

At 1 January 2017 R=Z2—+t%—-f—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 5203,775 128,422,102 7,257,600 — 925,411,424
Total comprehensive income FR2ENALE
for the year - - - - — 53,177,690 = (271,260) 52,906,430
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)  WE—RIBAR
(FrsE3s(a)) - - — - - - — 9832516 9832516
Acquisition of non-controlling interests £ 2 IR 2 T i
without a change in control FERER
(note 35(8)) (Ft35(8)) - - - - —  (5438744) —  (9,561256) (15,000,000)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36(A)) HE—FHEAR
(i sE36(a)) - — - — (5203775 5203775 - - -
Dividend paid BRRE - — - - - —  (7,257,600) —  (7,257,600)
Changes in equity for the year ENERED = — - — (5203775 52,942,721  (7,257,600) — 40,481,346
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-t4
+-A=t+-8 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 — 181,364,823 = — 965,892,770
Adjustments on initial application of RERERBERB
HKFRS 9 (note 3(A)) BERAZR
RSB 2 (I E3(A)) = = = = — 629587 = — 629587
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 R=Z2-\$-A—-H
LIERTE 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 — 181,994,410 - — 966,522,357
Total comprehensive income FRREUANEE
for the year - - - - — 25,925,593 - — 25,925,593
Changes in equity for the year FREREH - - - - — 25925593 - — 25,925,593
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\§+2A
== 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 — 207,920,003 - — 992,447,950
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {Z&8RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE
— )\ Tt
Note HK$ HK$
Bt &= AT & TT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &2 FZEFHWHIHLRE

Profit before tax B 25 BT g A 31,599,901 64,176,447
Adjustments for: KA SIEAE -
Depreciation e 4,447,582 2,663,899
Amortisation of leasehold land under BMEMAOTHE L
finance leases B 43,533 43,533
Bank interest income RAT A B A (1,275) (132,229)
Dividend income ESS PN — (486,150)
Other interest income A F B A (957,908) (2,018,881)
Impairment loss on goodwill HMBREEE — 1,423,124
Realised (gain)/loss from financial assets AATFEFGFABERD
at fair value through profit or loss PHMEENE #R
(W) 518 (1,194,825) 184,430
Fair value changes on financial assets at ARFEFABRONS
fair value through profit or loss, net RMEEAFEEZH
F — (1,970,110)
Finance costs B E M 1,582,846 9,391,129
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BWEREKE
plant and equipment BB 2,539 538,774
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE — R B A A W — (13,212,189)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing EFFTE R Asia Wealth
interest in Asia Wealth to acquisition B SRR s 2
date fair value HHAFEH KRS — (83,252)
Net impairment loss on loans receivable EWE SR EEIEFE 16,422,700 4,857,068
Recoveries of loans receivable impaired 1 [B1 2 5% 18 Kl 85 #Y
or written off JiE W & 7R (788,279) (2,270,751)
Operating profit before working capital changes % 8% < & &) Al 4% &% F 51,156,814 63,104,842
Increase in loans receivable FE W FRIE N (76,652,518) (462,476)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits ~ FB{fFIE & & K&
and other receivables E fih & W 138
W (35 m) 16,465,377 (16,121,731)
Decrease in bank balances — trust and RITHER — BFFER
segregated accounts &SR PR A 644,194 2,626,619
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at NAFEFABZNE
fair value through profit or loss BMEERD
(3% 0) 23,120,175 (20,139,670)
Decrease in accounts receivable JE L2 AR SRR 4,252,258 3,742,110
Decrease in accounts payable FE 5 AR TR 2 (634,474) (10,340,099)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other FEET B A R H h E T
payables FIE O A) /1 (10,727,996) 9,815,852
Cash generated from operations LEMEERS 7,623,830 32,225,447
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEBFEH (14,258,638) (10,236,246)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating EEE (FTA)
activities P53 & %5 (6,634,808) 21,989,201
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #7518 55 /8 & I (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
— I\ —E—+tF
Note HK$
B 2 B IT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RZFHMERLRE
Bank interest received B YR 1T F B 1,275 132,229
Dividend received B U % 8 — 486,150
Other interest received B R B 957,908 655,195
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERZE (959,704) (7,909,955)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE— KB A A
FT 15 FE 36(A) — 89,796,195
Acquisition of a subsidiary Ie g — R B AR 35(A) — 4,950,107
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing wEEE (FTA),/
activities Fri83R & %58 (521) 88,109,921
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIZFHMIREFE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests without &% #i # 1~ & T U B8
a change in control FE 15 R FE 2 35(B) — (15,000,000)
Interest-bearing loans raised HMEFEEXR 36(B) — 150,000,000
Repayment of interest-bearing loans EBEREXR 36(B) (150,000,000) (58,537,056)
Repayment of loan notes BEEERZER 36(B) — (33,000,000)
Interest paid B A 36(B) (8,029,424) (2,918,267)
Dividend paid B’ E — (7,257,600)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing mEEE (FTA) FrEIH
activities &5 (158,029,424) 33,287,077
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND & RIFEE&%ZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) tamigsE (164,664,753) 143,386,199
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FEVNHERESEXEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 202,020,501 58,634,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FERESRESEXEY
OF YEAR 37,355,748 202,020,501
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND HeRBEEEREUER
CASH EQUIVALENTS S
Bank and cash balances R1TRIA© E 8 37,355,748 202,020,501
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =& 84 75 R R M 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business is
21/F.=22/F., Fung House, 19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017, the
Securities and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange to
suspend the trading in the shares of the Company. As at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the trading of shares of the
Company remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting

HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong

Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.

1.
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APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

(ii) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 January
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity, without

restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B 7% 3% Z8 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. T%%W%ﬁ%T&é“}ﬂ%%Té%Eﬁ%
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ HER| (F
(Cont’d)

(A)  APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont’d) (A A REETESHBHRE
AR (48)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont‘d) EREMBRELENFER SR T
B (&)
The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following changes to PN A BB T 3R 5 2RI B9 E BUR
the Group’s accounting policies. EEEGTBAEHRTIES -
() Classification n Z#H
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial E-Z—N\F—HA—HE =K«
assets in the following measurement categories: SEHESREESDEARUT
STER
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value . HEBAAFEFAE
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") fib 2 E U A (LA FE
or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), and SFAEMEEWR A L
AR B A g (TR
AFEEFANERED
2K
. those to be measured at amortised cost. . IR K ARG 2 o
The classification depends on the Group's business model DEBRRAEEERES@ME
for managing the financial assets and the contractual ENEBEEARRESTENA
terms of the cash flows. AR ©
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will MARTFEFEZEEMS -
either be recorded in profit or loss or other Hirzs REB KR ERSHEAD
comprehensive income. For investments in equity ZEHEBATIER - LW IFFEE
instruments that are not held for trading, this will B2REmIARENS  Hi§
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable BURRAEE T E R IR R
election at the time of initial recognition to account for FF A B BB 3 38 42 DA R A R
the equity investment at FVTOCI. AE M E2ERA#EREET
BE o
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only REBEREBZEEAENSE
when its business model for managing those assets BEREANBREHSHEBKRE
changes. HEITEFHE -

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B 7% 3% Z8 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Cont’d)

(A)

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(1)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial assets
at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

3 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income

from these financial assets is included in other

income using the effective interest rate method.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is

recognised directly in profit or loss and presented

in other gains/(losses), together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of

profit or loss.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Cont’d)

(A)

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(1)

Measurement (Cont'd)

FVTOCI:
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

Assets that are held for collection of

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
measured at FVTOCI.

amount are taken through other comprehensive

interest, are
Movements in the carrying

income, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
When the financial asset is

profit or loss.

derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the

statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B 7% 3% Z8 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Cont’d)

(A)

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(1)

(i)

Measurement (Cont'd)

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI.
The
whether there has been a significant increase in credit

impairment methodology applied depends on

risk.

For loans receivable, the Group applies the general
approach, which requires an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses to be recognised as the loss
allowance for the financial instrument if the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and expected lifetime losses to be
recognised if the credit risk on that financial instrument

has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. RMFITREETEBUE

(A)  APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont‘d) (A)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(fi)

Impairment (Cont’d)

For accounts receivable, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Set out below is the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9

on the Group.

The following table summaries the impact on the Group's
opening retained profits as at 1 January 2018 as follows:

WmEER (=

R REETREM B RS
R (&)

BRAMBRELERNER SR T
B (&)

(i) Y1 (%)

HREUER  AEEERE
B B 75 S A B A RT 2
L% - FRE MR B I KK
BYaERRE 2 AR HE

18 -

NXHINRAB B HELE
AFRH AR EENTZE -

TREAR =T —NF—H—
B A S B B R B s A B 2

Z2MmT
HK$
BT
Decrease in impairment losses for: 515 B R (E B 1R 2
— Loans receivable — EWER 629,587
— Accounts receivable — AR =
Adjustment to retained profits from adoption of RZ=—ZT—N\&— 8 —H
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 RN B 7 B 7 ¥R 5 2 RI B 05% ¥
B8 i A B 5 B 629,587
Attributable to owners of the Company HENAATHES A 629,587
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. T%%W%)T%T&%«:‘ﬂ A BEBUK
H

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS REAER| (Z
(Cont’d)
(A)  APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont‘d) (A BRI R BB B ®mE
AR (48)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont'd) BAMBMEERNFZORESHT
A (&)
(i) Impairment (Cont'd) (i) A 1E (&)
The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is as REFPHAEERRNTE
follows: T
Effect on retained
profits
HEREnMHee
HK$
T
Opening balance — HKAS 39 By #Ees — BAETER
$395% 181,364,823
Decrease in impairment losses for loans receivable & U B SO (B & 18R
(note) (Bt 35) 629,587
Opening balance — HKFRS 9 B — BB BRE
R 95 181,994,410
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B4 7% 3R 72 My

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(A)  APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont‘d) (A)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment (Cont’d)

For assets that fall within the scope of impairment
HKFRS 9,
generally expected to become more volatile. The Group
has determined that the application of HKFRS 9
impairment model requirements at 1 January 2018 results

assessment under impairment losses are

in reversal of impairment allowance as follows:

EE (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZE-—ZF—/\F+_A=+—HIFE

BRANETE] R MR B R MK

HERA (F

- A

R REETREM B RS
R (&)

BRAMBRELERNER SR T
B (%)

(i) Y1 (%)

LB E B M5 E ERIE9
FRENFEHEEANEEM
5 REMREBRFES
ERES AEBEEER =
E-N\F-A-HERAEEY
75 3 % 2 Bl 95 R (B 5 A AR
EBRBOBEREBLT

HK$
T

Impairment allowance at 31 December 2017
under HKAS 39

BAE RS 5 2R F395
RZE—+tF+=_A=+—H

SONERER L 6,837,461
Reduction in impairment allowance recognised R_-_ZT—N\F— A —HERXN
at 1 January 2018 on loans receivable as —E—tF+=-HA=+—H
at 31 December 2017 (note) JE 5 & BB (B 5 R A (Bt 5E) (629,587)
Impairment allowance at 1 January 2018 R IR B 7 Bt 7% R & 2RI S 95%
under HKFRS 9 RZT—\F—A—BHRERE 6,207,874

Note: Loans receivable that were classified as loans and
receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised
cost. A decrease of HK$629,587 in the allowance for
impairment over these receivables was recognised in the
restated opening retained profits at 1 January 2018 on

transition to HKFRS 9.

MiGE : ARIE BB g5 % B FE395%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(A)

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs (Cont'a)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment losses related to loans receivable are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss. As
a result, the Group reclassified impairment losses
amounting to HK$2,586,317, recognised under HKAS 39,
from “other operating expenses” to “impairment loss on
loans receivable” in the statement of profit or loss for the

year ended 31 December 2017.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11

Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies regarding the recognition of
interest income charged on loan facilities and revenue from the
brokerage services or significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. RMFAIRRKEBITEAME

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS WREER (&)
(Cont’d)
(B) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET (B) B EMEEKRER I MEE

EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018. These new and revised HKFRSs
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

R BBV B HmEER

AEETEREFEANUTEHAME
RZZB-NF-A-BRBZHK
FERARERZHATREEITEE
MBMELER - ZEH REETE
BB HREERSIFAT A L EAR
SEEREER -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUTEHSHZEREZ
EEtEIRE AR

HKFRS 16 Leases

ERVKHRELENF165EES

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
EE(ERYBRERBEZEG)EBRMSHER 2 PHEEIE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
ERUBRELEN - -—REFE T+t FREHPNFESE

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures
ER B ERERZEFBERRAREELE 2RISR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards are
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that interim financial
report.

1 January 2019

—hF—A—H
1 January 2019
“Z-AF—H—H
1 January 2019

—hF—HA—H
1 January 2019

—hF—A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & B 7% 3% Z8 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward the accounting requirements
for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating or financing

leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. The
Group's office property leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the
Group may need to recognise and measure a liability at the
present value of the future minimum lease payments and
recognise a corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases.
The interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on
the right-of-use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The
Group's assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 38, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties amounted to HK$6,666,839 as at 31
2018. These leases are expected to be recognised as lease

December

liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16
is adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects of
discounting and the transition reliefs available to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Cont’d)

(B) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies
as described above could have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements from 2019 onwards.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(A)  CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(A)

CONSOLIDATION (Cont‘d)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable,
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement

directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-

of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

B 7% SR TR BV B (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(A)

CONSOLIDATION (Cont‘d)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity

instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent

consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-

date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a business
combination to calculate the goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(B)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL (Cont‘d)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially

measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"”) or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use in the
supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
reliably. All
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are

measured other repairs and maintenance are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7= 5

,QZ 5% & ?E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4, FESFEE (&)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(®

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicle 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

LEASES
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are

accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

(D)

LEASES (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term,
a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the
each determined at the

minimum lease payments,

inception of the lease.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets over the shorter of the lease term and their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment, unless it is clear that both elements are
in which case the entire lease is

operating leases,

classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

B 7% SR TR BV B (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — TRADING RIGHT

Trading right with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less any impairment losses.
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is any indication

that the trading right has suffered an impairment loss.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(G)  FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of

the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest

method.

— FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.

— FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including

interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

B 7% SR TR BV B (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(G)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other

income.
Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. Any attributable transaction
costs were recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities were stated at amortised
cost.

Investments which did not fall into any of the above categories
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value was remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend income from equity
investments and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method were recognised in profit or
loss respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
debt securities were also recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain

or loss recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

4. FEGHE (&

(H) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE H) el BE 2%

AN 5 B 7 R A 0 1 ) R AR (B R
BREWHIE - EZ R EE X
Al WERR B AME T LB — B
M0 REGE - MkEEANEEES
G RENKERER S TR - B
@%EEWZ\%E. WEE -

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

& M R IR A R R R RO 4% B S
AREEBRBEBR -

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.
(1) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (I RERBEEEYD
HREeRERMS  RERRESEE
- FERB® RFRRIRT
RE A& @i 2B BER  UER

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand Y BIERIT
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-

term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into BAR=-EANZHAERER A
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of EHcBERSEEERERRTA

WEHASRHUERE -ReRBEESE
BYEEHEEBER G-

change in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

() FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ) =maEkExmTA

SRABERESTAENRIEAEIL
ERRHE 2 NBEBE B HRELE
Al emEaBERETAZEED
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any HomTAEDERAAREENHIRE
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the FMEaBRZEAETHERSRER
ZREMAEH - HEEEME ERiERS
TEMEMO S BRI ST -

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an

Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

M

(K)  BORROWINGS K fEE

BENFUNRFEGRREEZR
SRR FER - R KA BB K

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset.

Commission income from securities brokerage services is
recognised on the date of transaction when the relevant

services are rendered.
Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Interest income on loans is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When a loan has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(N)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Cont‘d)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Commission income from securities brokerage services is
recognised on the date of transaction when the relevant

services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory

(“"MPF Scheme")
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund

Provident Fund retirement scheme
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost charged
to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

4. TEETEHE(E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(0) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont‘d)

(i) Pension obligations (Cont’d)

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

(i) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer

of those benefits and when the Group

restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.

(P)  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-

market based vesting conditions.

(Q) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESFEE (&

(Cont’d)

(Q) BORROWING COSTS (Cont’d) Q fEEKKGE)
To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for N—MEBAESRARNER—BES
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of BREERR ABAEARAZEEK
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by REFETVHEBZIBEE 2 X H PR
applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. RzE&RtEMEE - EAMEETHE
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing ARAEEEE (REBBABRNER
costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are EB)ZBEXRAZMEFTHE  #
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made BRI AEREEREEMED 28
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. ERIBR AN o
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the Fﬁﬁ,ﬁ\ﬁﬁfﬁgﬁkﬂiﬁ HE4A2H
period in which they are incurred. FREREANER -

(R)  TAXATION R Bt2A
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred 15 70 7 Sz #8 BN B e RE B 18 2 48
tax. %D o
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. B ER FE 1) %% TH 12 G A FE 2R X A 5T
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss - ARARNEMFERRBS AN
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or MZWARFALZEE kR DHAR
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or RSN AIHNA 2 TH B - KRB R A
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated BRIRNEEMERZEN - AXEBA
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted BEANERIIE y BERAREE B A
by the end of the reporting period. EEMAEREM 2 HEFTE
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying BLEHBEREENBREATEE
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial RaEzREE R ERRT A
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the kB AR AR ZRBERAR -
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are RERBAG - RAEMEERBTY
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and B EREERAR  WRERBENE
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is AIREFEIR ST AR LR =88 - R B
probable that taxable profits will be available against which AREEBRIRDATERREZE
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused AT BRBLEHRIBEEE - WERE
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁi?ﬂ?’ﬂﬁﬁﬂ e ERE
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or A EASEH RN 2R (EBE
from the initial recognition (other than in a business HBRINEES AR BTEER
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that HMEENREE-

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary BELEHBEEAERRERWE QA
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where REZERNE R T AR M
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary 7R 52 B B2 4R I B R AR 2 B B I R
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will RERHZBRARRRTED 2
not reverse in the foreseeable future. BEIERIN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(R)

TAXATION (Cont‘d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

(S)  RELATED PARTIES (Cont’a)

(B)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any

of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.

The entity, or any member of the Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-

generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loans receivable and accounts receivable. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(U)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

lifetime ECL for
receivable. The expected credit losses on these financial assets

The Group always recognises accounts
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of

money where appropriate.

For loans receivable, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
if the credit
increased significantly since

recognition. However, risk on the financial

instrument has not initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that

financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result
from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a loan receivable has

increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors

Forward-looking information considered includes the

operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial

analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate

to the Group’s core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(U)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’a)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTEGHE(#F)

(Cont’d)

(U)  IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd) V) T=REEREE)
Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d) FEERBREZE LA E)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk BEMY - W—EERITARRER
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since HERERAEERRBRE RIAEE
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to @x‘“*iiﬁﬁmﬂlﬂﬂ’ﬂ’“gﬂ&ﬁ?ﬂ
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial PR R RE D M B K N o 7 T BB
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: T —HSBRITAWEREAR KEI’\J

SERRE -

() the financial instrument has a low risk of default, ) SBIENBEHNRBRERE:
(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual (il BEBALBHAZSENSELHE
cash flow obligations in the near term, and TREEENREN R
(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in (i) KEMSLEREBKRIOHD

the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the FMEFH RV EEEERAER
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow EREEREBBENRES -
obligations.
The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk WMEeMEERIRETRICSEKRL
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade” EMERNER) EI'J’J\\*BT*%\H b 57
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an BAIEFEERBINTROER - &
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating EBEBIOANFTR EJJK%IE?S\
of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a RZeMEENEERBRRIE - &M
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts. BEHFHOMBRRERRE  BETE
i HA RO o
For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group HRUBEREOME AEBKAT
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to AR AEN —7 2 B Ekﬁﬁﬁﬁi
be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing TARRENEMGEHER B - 5T
the financial instrument for impairment. In assessing whether HENRERMBERS m’U VA PR AZ
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since ERBRREGANEEGMME  AE@E=E
initial recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group AR B E A E A R g r#E o
considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria AEBTEHERBUEEEERR
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in BEBEEMEEERR - WHREE
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the RRRVEIS IE - IR FIZ%ERE
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit ARFERHATEERFEE AR EZE

risk before the amount becomes past due. n e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’a)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

internal

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

issuer or the

— significant financial difficulty of the

counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

—  The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(U)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at
the reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the

debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed,
the expected loss allowance is the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

A 7% 3R T2 B B (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(U)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or

loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the

investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of

financial position.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows of
the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for loans and accounts receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them

collectively for impairment, based on the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the delayed
payments in the portfolio, observable changes in economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables, etc.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(U)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Only for loans and accounts receivables, the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for loans receivable) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds what the amortised cost of the financial asset would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed.

For available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair value

subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;

impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7= 5

,QZ 5% & ?E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have

made the following judgements that have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements

(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward

looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(@ Impairment allowance for loans receivable

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group makes impairment allowance for loans receivable based
on assessments of the recoverability of the loans receivable,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. If there is objective evidence that
impairment loss on loans receivable has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The identification of bad and doubtful
debts requires significant judgement on whether the objective
evidence for impairment exists and assessing the amount of
impairment loss requires significant estimates when determining
the present value of the expected future cash flows. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the loans receivable
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been charged.

As at 31 December 2017, the impairment allowance for loans
receivable amounted to HK$6,837,461.

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of impairment
loss for ECL on loans receivable based on the credit risk of
loans receivable. The amount of the impairment loss based on
ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)
(@) Impairment allowance for loans receivable (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2018, the impairment allowance for loans
receivable amounted to HK$19,065,245.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: price risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(A)  PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, if equity prices had
been 10% higher/lower (2018: N/A), profit after tax for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$2.2 million (2018: N/A). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading

investments.

(B)  CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or
unwillingness of a counterparty to meet its contractual
obligations. The carrying amount of the bank and cash
balances, loans and interests receivable, deposits and other
receivables, included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group’s financial assets, before taking into
account of collateral it holds. Exposure to such credit risk arises

primarily from its financing activities to customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE
6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont‘d)

The Group's credit policy specifies the credit approval, review
and monitoring processes. All new customers of the Group are
subject to account opening procedures which include financial
background checks for credit verification purpose. Credit limit
applications are guided by a set of credit principles and these
applications are subject to regular independent review. The
board of directors of the Company are responsible to ensure the
credit policies and operation manual are appropriate to the
market need and the Group’s loans department ensures the
credit approval, review and monitoring processes as per
stipulated in the manual are properly followed by the operation
staff.

The Group also adopts a “two eyes” process requiring credit
approval at successively higher levels or committees depending
on, among other things, the size and nature of the proposed
transactions.

The credit quality classification of gross loans receivable (before
impairment allowance) using the Group’s credit rating system is
set out in the table below:
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Performing B4 929,760,312 884,937,811
Doubtful R BR 29,735,802 585,027
Loss BB 1,085,579 1,183,387
960,581,693 886,706,225
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

6. THEAREEE)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

The Group considers all loans receivable (except for loans to
foreign domestic workers) as doubtful if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue for more than 3
months and principal, accrued interest and/or future interest
may not be fully secured by the fair value of collateral at its
prevailing market price. The Group considers the loans
receivable as loss if the repayments of principal and/or interest
have been overdue for more than 45 days for the loans to
foreign domestic workers, or have been overdue for more than
6 months for all other types of loans receivable; and in both
cases the collection of principal and/or interest in full is
improbable after taking into account the fair values of the

collateral at prevailing market prices.

Based on the above individual assessment, the loans department
of the Group proposes to the management of the Company the
amount of impairment provision to be made at least on a
monthly basis. The Group also performs collective assessment of
the loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics. The impairment provision is
made based on the historical impairment rates of receivables
with similar credit risk characteristic.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. THEKREREEZ)
(B)  CREDIT RISK (Cont’a) B) FERRGE)
An analysis of changes in the gross amount of loans and B R R 2 50 E U G TE B R )
advances and receivables is as follows: DT

Gross loans and advances and R=-F-N\E—HA—BH
receivables as at 1 January 2018 BERRBRUERRE
Fok ] 850,806,468 25,505,533 1,756,878 878,068,879
New loans/financing originated BERBNMNTER BE 715,402,611 — — 715,402,611
Loans/financing derecognised or repaid FREEERKEEEE
during the year (other than write- HRE (MR AN
offs) (621,321,879) (21,972,932) (322,808) (643,617,619)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss EEZ12{A FTEHEEE
(Stage 1) B(E1R) — — = =
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss EEEFEERENZH
not credit impaired (Stage 2) BHEEERE(E2R) (81,852,932) 81,852,932 = =
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss EEE{EEHENZHE
credit impaired (Stage 3) HEEER(E38) (28,816,867)  (3,532,601) 32,349,468 —
Total transfer between stages EEHzEMEREE (110,669,799) 78,320,331 32,349,468 —
Write-offs i = = (3,208,171) (3,208,171)
At 31 December 2018 RZF—-N\%
+=ZA=+—-H 834,217,401 81,852,932 30,575,367 946,645,700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. THEKREREEZ)
(B)  CREDIT RISK (Cont’a) B FERRE)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is HEHBREERERENEH DN
as follows: m :

At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF

+=B=1+—"H 6,837,461
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 B B H s 28

BRI E (629,587)

Restated opening balance under HKFRS 9 R=Z— N\F—H—H

as at 1 January 2018 REEEHBRELER
FOR BN BN 4,739,142 12,718 1,456,014 6,207,874
New loans/financing originated BEENFERBE 1,810,625 — — 1,810,625
Loans/financing derecognised or repaid  FREUEHE RS EE
during the year (other than write- B/ BE (MR
offs) (1,444,329) (312,771) (302,832) (2,059,932)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss E&=12{8 A BHEE
(Stage 1) BB (E1R) — — = =
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss EREEFEERENLH
not credit impaired (Stage 2) EHEEER (F24) (1,692,292) 1,692,292 — —
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss E&ZEE EREN 2 H
credit impaired (Stage 3) EHEEEE (FE3R) (3.753,473) (12,718) 3,766,191 —
Total transfer between stages EERzEMEREE (5,445,765) 1,679,574 3,766,191 —
Movements due to changes in credit risk 1= & & [ & 8) 3| 2 &) & 3 8,036,121 5,307,070 1,038,624 14,381,815
Write-offs i = = (1,275,137)  (1,275,137)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZEB—-N\£
+-ZA=+—-H 7,695,794 6,686,591 4,682,860 19,065,245
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. THEKREREEZ)
(B)  CREDIT RISK (Cont’a) B FEERRGE)
Movements in the provision for impairment on loans receivable ERE SR EREESDES DT -

are as follows:

Individual Collective

At 1 January 2017 R=ZZT—+tF—HA—H 5,003,285 5,489,384
Charged during the year FNFR 4,857,068 —
Written off during the year F R (6,241,525) —
Reversed during the year A [E] (2,070,751) (200,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=—A=+— 1,548,077 5,289,384
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has certain concentrations RZFE—N\F+ZA=+—H K&
of credit risk as 7% (2017: 9%) of the Group’s loans receivable H7% (T —+tF: 9% )N EKE
were due from the Group’s largest customer, and 19% (2017: RREAKEZGAEFS  WEREE
32%) were due from the five largest customers determined on BE  B19%(ZF — £ % :32%)
the same basis. HNEKREZFRERAARE @ thA&E

FE-—ERENEESTRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

6. THEAREEE)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(B)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

Collateral is obtained in respect of mortgage loans, secured
fixed loans and secured revolving loans which made up to 26%
(2017: 33%) of the total loans receivable as at 31 December
2018. Such collaterals comprise residential and commercial
properties and listed/unlisted equity securities pledged against
the balances. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of
collaterals for the first mortgage loans which are mainly
residential flats based on its prevailing market prices amounted
to approximately HK$96.3 million (2017: HK$62.35 million). The
fair value of properties collateralised for the second mortgage
loans before discounting credit protections available to the first
mortgagees amounted to approximately HK$47.02 million (2017:
HK$55.95 million). The fair value/net asset value of other
collaterals which mainly include listed/unlisted equity securities
amounted to approximately HK$571.86 million (2017:
HK$361.26 million).

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The board of directors of the Company is
responsible to ensure the Group to maintain sufficient capital
funding and credit lines to meet liquidity requirements. This is
achieved by projecting cash flows on a regular basis. The
accounts department of the Group monitors and reports the
funding needs to management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(C)  LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont'd)

The Group is not exposed to significant liquidity risk since there
is no substantial irrevocable commitment associated with

financial instruments.

The following table summarises the maturity of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018 based
on contractual undiscounted payments. Except for the interest-
bearing loans, the contractual undiscounted payments of all
financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts as at
the end of the reporting period.

(o])]
demand

HERHEE

6. THREAREEE)

(©

Less than
3 months

LHREMEA

nEE R (&)

AEETEESHTAEBENEAN
AR R G - W T EEE RS
BB -

TREFIVR-_F-NF+_A=+—
B AEEETESREBEERSOR
FRMNREFN N BIEREE - Bat
SBEFSN MELBRAEBENA ORI
ANROBEERBEHROEKEE
I

3to 12
months

At 31 December 2018 R-B—N\E
+=ZA=+—-H
Accounts payable FE {3 R 3K — 159,149 — — 159,149
Accruals and other payables it B K& E it
J& 1 3R — 2,582,545 - — 2,582,545
— 2,741,694 — — 2,741,694
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=A=+—H
Accounts payable FE £ BR 3K — 793,623 — — 793,623
Accruals and other payables &t E I K% E it
P 3OR — 8,562,505 — — 8,562,505
Interest-bearing loans (note (a)) S & (M7E@) 150,000,000 — — — 150,000,000
150,000,000 9,356,128 — — 159,356,128

Note:

(a) The balance of HK$150,000,000 (2018: N/A) that is classified as
“on demand” represents the loans from an independent third
party as at 31 December 2017, which are repayable on demand.

The board of directors of the Company has closely monitored the
rate of utilisation of the facility throughout the year and make

sure all relevant interests were duly paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

BZ f% & ?E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

6. THEKREREEZ)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(D)

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument or the interest income of a portfolio will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Group’'s major
interest-bearing assets at the end of the reporting period are
bank deposits and interest-bearing loans receivable and payable.
Interests on bank deposits are principally based on deposits
rates offered by banks in Hong Kong. Interest-bearing loans
receivable are charged at fixed or floating rates. Interest-
bearing loans payable comprise loans from independent lenders

which are charged at fixed rates.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure by matching the
interest rate profile of its assets and liabilities. The board of
directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring the policy
is appropriate and sufficient to monitor the interest rate
exposure of the Group, by regularly monitoring the benchmark
interest rates of products offered against prevailing market
conditions. Substantially most of the Group’s loans receivable
carried fixed interest rates. The Group prices these loans
receivable strategically to reflect market fluctuations and achieve

a reasonable interest rate spread.

In consideration of historical fluctuation in interest rates in
recent years, the Group expects a similar level of change within
the next twelve months. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant arising from the Group's

interest-bearing financial instruments.

(D)

R @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 6. TRIAMREE (&)

(D) INTEREST RATE RISK (Cont’d) (D) F=@E kg (&)
The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group’s bank AEERIFEF ?TE’J%E?‘TT??XM
deposits and loans receivable and payable at floating interest REKKREMSEROGEED T
rates. FTE o

Effect on
profit
after tax
HERHE
AR

Effect on
equity

Change in
basis points

BEEH HEmHBE

31 December 2018 —F—-N\£F
+=A=+-—8
Bank deposits IRITTFER +/-50 +/-186,292 +/-186,292
Interest-bearing loans receivable fEU Gt BB K +/-50 +/-11,864 +/-11,864
31 December 2017 —E—tF
+=—A=+—H
Bank deposits |ITIF +/-50 +/-732,068 +/-732,068
Interest-bearing loans receivable W E EER +/-50 +/-17,865 +/-17,865
Interest-bearing accounts receivable J& U 5 B B 3¢ +/-50 +/-21,261 +/-21,261
(F) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT ) RZTE-—NF+_A=+—8B2Z
31 DECEMBER 2018 TR T AEHR
2017
—T—+tF
HK$
7T
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at fair value through AR FEF AEZRD
profit or loss: EREE:
Held-for-trading FIEEE — 21,925,350
Financial assets at amortised cost R AFHEZ
TREE 980,972,005 —
Loans and receivables (including cash and B R R EWRIE (B
cash equivalents) iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%) — 1,105,047,645
Financial liabilities: SRIBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBIHEKAGTEZ
TR E 2,741,694 159,356,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7= 5

,QZ 5% & ?E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
(F)  FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into
three levels inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:
Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

(A)  DISCLOSURES OF LEVEL IN FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AT 31
DECEMBER 2018 AND 2017:

At 31 December 2017, the fair value measurements of the
Group's investment in listed securities (2018: Nil) classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recurring
and are determined using level 1 inputs.

6.
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F AFME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Z-N\F+ZA=1+—HILFE

The Group has two operating segments as follows:

Money lending —

provision and arrangement of credit

facilities in Hong Kong

Securities trading —

brokerage and
securities

provision of services in relation to securities

investments in listed

The securities trading segment is a new business segment of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 through step acquisition

of a subsidiary.

The Group's operating segments are strategic business units that offer

different services. They are managed separately because each business

requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment profit or loss does not include the following items:

— gain on disposal of a subsidiary

— unallocated other income

— unallocated other gains and losses

— unallocated corporate expenses

Segment assets do not include the following items:

— deferred tax assets
— other unallocated assets

Segment liabilities do not include the following items:

— deferred tax liabilities
— other unallocated liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 8.

Money
Lending

B R

IECEE R

ST (continued &)

BE-"Z-N\F+-A=+—BLLFE

TERER (F)

Securities
Trading

HHEE

FHZESRER AERBRAZER:

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-%T— }\35
+ZH=
IEEE
Revenue &= 92,732,560 28,938 92,761,498
Segment profit/(loss) o Eba A (E8B) 37,685,413 (5,254,676) 32,430,737
Interest revenue F B WA 92,733,597 20,017 92,753,614
Interest expense A B (1,582,846) — (1,582,846)
Depreciation e (3,728,546) (700,280) (4,428,826)
Income tax expense P15 %t (5,529,554) — (5,529,554)
Other material non-cash item: HEmEARFREGEA :
— Net charge for impairment — EWREFRE
allowance for loans receivable BiEFE 15,634,421 — 15,634,421
Additions to segment non-current DMIERBDEERE
assets 957,550 2,154 959,704
As at 31 December 2018 R-F—N\%E
+-—HA=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 962,680,670 27,005,694 989,686,364
Segment liabilities DA & 2,031,897 344,922 2,376,819

E-—CEHSBEEERAR

—EN\FEFER



Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets and

T N\F+_A=+—HILFE

(Cont’d)

8. &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

BEH (&)

FHREESHER BERBRZEAR:

liabilities: (Cont’d) (48)
Money Securities
Lending Trading Total
W& BHEE A
HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_T—tF
+=-—A=+—8
IEFE
Revenue & 115,883,092 302,913 116,186,005
Segment profit/(loss) o 8ba A (E8B) 65,046,211 (4,400,776) 60,645,435
Interest revenue 2 W A 115,883,092 966,859 116,849,951
Interest expense B R (8,339,728) — (8,339,728)
Depreciation e (2,161,558) (483,584) (2,645,142)
Income tax expense P15 %t (11,095,412) — (11,095,412)
Other material non-cash items: HEmEAFRGIER :
— Net charge for impairment — EWREFRE
allowance for loans receivable BiEmFE 2,586,317 — 2,586,317
— Impairment loss on goodwill — HEREEE — 1,423,124 1,423,124
Additions to segment non-current DMIERBDEERE
assets 6,784,383 1,125,572 7,909,955
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=—A=+—8
Segment assets DEEE 1,033,913,848 86,812,945 1,120,726,793
Segment liabilities D E & 162,673,650 1,407,770 164,081,420
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 8. 7WER (&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and O 2R BiEE SEREBEZHER:
liabilities:
2018 2017
T—\§ —E—+F
HK$
om
Profit or loss Ei
Total profit or loss of reportable segments Al 2 5 5 3048 % F sk B 18 32,430,737 60,645,435
Unallocated amounts: AN HE :
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A A Y= — 13,212,189
Administrative and other operating expenses TR EAE ST (12,508,116) (21,202,916)
Other income EH A g A 6,147,726 1,394,476
Other gains and losses H bWz R 518 — 83,252
Finance costs % ER — (1,051,401)
Income tax expense FT 15 B b < (144,754) (174,605)
Consolidated profit for the year F NGRS A 25,925,593 52,906,430
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AEWoHREE 989,686,364 1,120,726,793
Unallocated amounts: AAEEH :
Deferred tax assets IR GE T I & B 3,107,251 872,748
Other receivables and other assets H i & YR I8 K
Hih&E 2,824,924 18,894,610
Consolidated total assets e BEME 995,618,539 1,140,494,151
Liabilities Bf&
Total liabilities of reportable segments AZ2®HHEaE 2,376,819 164,081,420
Unallocated amounts: AN S HE :
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE — 269,194
Other liabilities HthaE 793,770 10,250,767
Consolidated total liabilities ReBERRE 3,170,589 174,601,381

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current

assets was generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years

ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no revenue from a

single external customer amounted to 10% or more

revenue.

of the Group’s

BE-_Z—NFE=-_ZF—tF+=A8
=+—HIEFE AEERERAIAR
FREENMRSHELEERTALFERS

HE-_Z—NFER=-_ZFT—t&F+=A8
=+—HBIEFE UEBE-IIRAEFHIK
=M AEBKEZT10% A L o

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

9. REVENUE 9. W=

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
P& TT

Interest income charged on loan facilities #E KB E WE ) TR
PN 92,732,560 115,883,092
Commission income from securities brokerage KEBHFELHES KA 28,938 302,913
92,761,498 116,186,005

10. OTHER INCOME 10. Hfbr A
2018 2017
—F—)\F —E 5
HK$ HK$
P TT
Bank interest income ;AT A B A 1,275 132,229
Dividend income A& B WA — 486,150
Gross rental income e A BEE — 210,218
Other interest income H b F B UA 957,908 2,018,881
Compensation income (note) & A (Bt E) 5,208,489 —
Sundry income MEHA 1,851 84,268
6,169,523 2,931,746
Note: On 7 February 2018, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the chairman and e : RZFE—-—NFZALH  EBEMNRTERFE

executive director of the Company. Following his resignation, Mr. Sin

remained as a consultant to the Group providing advisory services on the

Group's business until 6 February 2019.

Pursuant to the director’s service agreement dated 29 November 2012

entered into between Mr. Sin and the Company, Mr. Sin had

compensated the Company with such amount in cash of HK$5,208,489

upon the early termination of his employment as a director of the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= S B4 7% ¥R 7 MY

5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

11. Ht s R G 1E

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
& TT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 36(A)) HE—EH B A A ks
(KT #E36(A)) — 13,212,189
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing interest & #75t & M Asia Wealth
in Asia Wealth to acquisition date fair value K% AR s 2= BB A ER
(note 35(A)) ANFEEHRE
(B 7E35(A)) — 83,252
Loss on disposals of property, plant and LEWE  BER
equipment HEEE (2,539) (538,774)
Realised gain/(loss) from financial assets at fair A A FEF AEZH
value through profit or loss PRMEENEER
Wz, (E#E) 1,194,825 (184,430)
Fair value changes on financial assets at fair AATFEFABZED
value through profit or loss, net CHEEATEES
H — 1,970,110
1,192,286 14,542,347
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. I EHA
2017
—E—tF
HK$
T
Interest on bank loans RITERF B — 62,079
Interest on other borrowings wholly repayable B T 4 A& HE &Y
within five years HiEEFE 1,582,846 8,339,728
Effective interest expense on loan notes wholly 87 T 4 A& SUE &Y
repayable within five years EXREENER
S — 989,322
1,582,846 9,391,129
E-—HReREEARARN —T—N\EFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 13. BR B A0 F
The Group's profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the REBRFRAEMEHR GIA) TH&
following: 18 :

ZB-N\F —E—tF

HK$ HK$
BT T
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B & 700,000 900,000
Depreciation e 4,447,582 2,663,899
Amortisation of leasehold land under BREFA T E -6
finance leases 43,533 43,533
Legal and professional fees EEREEER 6,038,102 4,085,333
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEME  WEREE
equipment BB 2,539 538,774
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A R s — (13,212,189)
Impairment loss on goodwill BmEREEE — 1,423,124
Minimum lease rental payments in respect of BBLEBEAOR T30 K&
land and buildings under an operating lease EFIMNHNREES 5,288,721 5,419,661
Net charge for impairment allowance for loans & 42 & SRR (B # & /5 58
receivable 15,634,421 2,586,317
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. A8 HBEX
2017
—T—tF
HK$
P8 TT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEARE I — BB NS
Provision for the year FANEE 8,136,508 11,592,091
Under-provision/(over-provision) in prior years BAEFERMG(BE)
g 41,497 (20,000)
8,178,005 11,572,091
Deferred tax (note 30) i E 75 38 (Ff 5£30) (2,503,697) (302,074)
5,674,308 11,270,017
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2017: HE-Z-—N\F+-_A=+—HIEFE"
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 BEEMNGRERBEHFERRATGE N - &
December 2018. 16.5% (ZZT—+t 4 : 16.5% ) M Hi X (B #

& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

On 21 March 2018, the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017, which
substantively enacted. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first

introduces a two-tiered profits tax regime, was
HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations will be
taxed at 8.25% with effect from the assessment year 2018/2019.
Profits above HK$2 million will continue to be subject to the tax rate
of 16.5%.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as
follows:

14. FREHRAX(E)

RZE—NE=R=+—8 HIMNER
ARG = F — &/ (ST (FE75) 15
BIEREEEEM - REFSHAMRE
EERCENE2EEB TRAR FIEE
—T NS T NERFERLIU825%
B R R T - BB A BB T 208 F A5 E
LA16.5% By B R BR o

Fff 15 B B 2 B2 R B3 A s 1) SR UA & B R 5 T
BEZEHEMT

2018 2017
—E-N\%E —T—tF
HK$ HK$
&I T
Profit before tax R 252 Al g A 31,599,901 64,176,447
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% RE R E16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) (ZZ—tF:165%)
AEMNIA 5,213,984 10,589,114
Tax effect of a two-tiered profits tax regime FI 15 B4 w4 Il 19 B0 7% =0 & (165,000) =
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBA BTG & (198) (1,136,207)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible A 0% F X M B 75 52 & 116,466 186,090
Tax effect of temporary difference not RIEREREEN
recognised Tl 75 =0 2 73,038 37,816
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not mARERAAHIBEED
previously recognised Bz 2 (24,358) (7,504)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised M AERRIBEEN
M8 418,879 1,620,708
Under-provision/(over-provision) in prior years BEFERMG (B
B 41,497 (20,000)
Income tax expense Fri3 %t 5,674,308 11,270,017
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EEEABX
2017
—T—tF
HK$
P& TT
Employee benefits expense (excluding directors’ {EE®AMZ (TREES
emoluments): M) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e EARER 15,880,204 16,554,354
Pension scheme contributions RINE FT IR 945,702 689,918
16,825,906 17,244,272
F-RREMEMARAT —T-N\FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2017:
Nil). No balance (2017: Nil) of forfeited contributions were
available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included two (2017: one) directors and nil (2017: one) ex-
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 16. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2017: three) individuals are set out below:

(A)

—

15. BERAMAX (&

BINEE SR

FAREIRE RRER(ZE—t
FoE) -REHB BEERKE
PR (CE—EF B ARE
AR R ALK -

hE&E=%HEE

FN - AEEREHESHEEBER
Z(ZT—tF:—R)EERTH
(ZZ—tF: —R)AEES - 2B
SR FIDIMA R T =2
—E—tF R REEZHEFE
;AW

2018 2017

—B-N\F e

HKS$ HK$

I 78 T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FMREWEFT 3,188,200 2,965,894
Performance related bonuses FIRMEEE A 1,747,000 1,400,000
Pension scheme contributions RIS EHEI R 328,625 59,150
5,263,825 4,425,044

The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid individuals
fell within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007% 7T
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7T &
1,500,0007% 7T
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000/ 7T &=
2,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000% Tt &
2,500,000/ 7T
HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,000/ 7T &
3,000,0007% 7T

HBp =R HFERENMESNFT
FISEABIT

Number of individuals

EE A

2018 2017
ZEB-N\F =T =%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3 & 87 7% 38 72 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=T—N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEfFE A K A&

(A) DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S (A EFRTHEZME
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive ZSEERTHRBREBEE T —N\F
officer for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: TZA=+—BLEFENMSEHT
IR -

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person's services as a director/chief executive officer,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

HETALUES /THERSH (FRBFATARMBLE) FREBRBEAAEADNE

Allowance  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme  Share-based

Salaries in kind bonuses  contributions payments
EHREY BihE AR
fg & REEATA SRR BERHAR

Executive directors: BTESE:

Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) A (@) = 312,500 - - 39,062 - 351,562
Li Sin Hung Maxim (note (b)) 2 (F b)) - 843,734 - 1,070,000 17,613 - 1,931,347
Wong Kai Lun (note (b)) BRI (M) - 457,258 — 1,080,000 17,613 — 1,554,871
Cao Huifang (note (d)) 25 (M) - 240,000 - - - - 240,000
Xie Si (note (d) EEAGED) - 240,000 - - - - 240,000
Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES :

Fung Kam Man RN 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Wang Zhiwei FEg 120,000 — - - — - 120,000
Chan Tung Tak Alain (note (h) Raae (FreEn) 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Li Long (note (d)) e () 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (note (i) BRI (M) 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Chief executive officer: s

Tsang Yan Kwong Bk - 1,520,200 - 1,000,000 175,025 - 2,695,225
Total for 2018 - \E8H 600,000 3,613,692 = 3,150,000 249,313 — 7,613,005

F-EREREEFERAF —FT-/\FER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Cont'd)

(A)  DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS

(Contd)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
officer for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director/chief executive officer,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AEAALUES/ARERID(FRAXAARENBLR) FRERBEANRENHHE

16. EE/ARAE (&

A EFRTBREHME (&)

BEEERTHREHBEE
+_ﬂ:+—EI¢¢EE’UM$§)Z§IJ

mT

=4 %

Allowance  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme  Share-based
Fees Salaries in kind (Note (})) bonuses  contributions payments Total
EERED BiRe AR 7

e Fe  BMME)) REABEL SRR RERHMR 28

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: BTEE:
Sin Kwok Lam (note (a)) &@Mﬁ*ﬂa)) - 1,700,000 — 11,250,000 212,500 — 13,162,500
Tsang Yan Kwong (note (c)) ¥ (FiaEQ) = 1,044,273 (41,250) = 118,360 = 1,121,383
Leung Wai Hung (note (c)) f 1 (M #H0) - 677,762 (41,516) - 61,486 = 697,732
Ho Siu Man (note (c)) ke (i) - 626,980 (34,065) - 56,756 - 649,671
Cao Huifang (note (d) B2 () - 70,667 - - - - 70,667
Xie Si (note (d) EEAGE) - 70,667 - - - - 70,667
Independent non-executive directors: BIERTES
Yu Wan Hei (note (e)) REE (M) 59,333 - - - - - 59,333
Fung Kam Man BB X 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Wang Zhiwei Ei”& 120,000 = = = = = 120,000
Chan Kin Keung Eugene (note (f)) 2o (B EE() 11,645 — — — — — 11,645
Ng Ting Chi (note (g)) 9&@*”(%?9 ) 33,903 = = = — = 33,903
Chan Tung Tak Alain (note (h) R & (HEh) 42,581 - - - - - 42,581
Li Long (note (d)) E3AGE) 40,667 - - - - - 40,667
Choy Sze Chung Jojo (note (i) ZRBE (M) 15,667 - - - - - 15,667
Chief executive officer: THER
Tsang Yan Kwong 2% = 358,029 16,145 1,100,000 27,650 — 1,501,824
Total for 2017 —F-t54E 443,796 4,548,378 (100,686) 12,350,000 476,752 — 17,718,240

Notes: Bt &F -

(a) Resigned on 7 February 2018

(b) Appointed on 9 January 2018

(c) Resigned on 22 September 2017

(d) Appointed on 15 September 2017

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x

/EJ\ ,QZ %% $§ ?E BN EE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. EET/A R %= (&)

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(A)

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
Note: (Cont'd)
(e) Retired on 28 June 2017

(f) Appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on 2 August 2017

(9) Appointed on 28 June 2017 and resigned on 9 October 2017

(h) Appointed on 24 August 2017
(i) Appointed on 14 November 2017

() The allowance and benefits in kind refers to untaken leave
provision for director(s).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the
director's connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

(A)

EERTRAEHE (&)
e - (8
© R-F-EFNA-TNBEE

(f) RZB—+FRAZT/\BEEE
YHR-F—tFNRB-B#E

(9) RZB—+FRAZTN\BEEZE
YR-FB—tFE+ANBEIE

(h) RZB—+FNA-THOBEEZE
(i) REBE—tF+—ATHBERE

() RN EMRANEEFZ RN
HiRE -

FRALEEEREXRBRELEM
e (ZT—LF:8)-

FERRS RHRAOMER
Rl

ARRIEEREENHET RER
FRIFAEAERDRFEUAR
RAMERFNFERAEBREKE
MNBEARS RHERANTHEER
B REENERFN -

E—FREREEARRT —T-N\FER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 3R 3 My =+
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

17. DIVIDENDS

T N\F+_A=+—HILFE

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit

for the vyear

attributable to owners of the Company of

HK$25,925,593 (2017: HK$53,177,690) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 3,628,800,000 (2017: 3,628,800,000) in

issue during the year.

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not

have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years ended

31 December 2018 and 2017.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018

17.

18.

(continued 1&)

@S|

EFTRERBE-FT - N\F+ =4
SH-RLER(CT—+F: ®ARK
A E RS -

FREF
SREXRF

EREABADIERARNRGEE ARBEF
A & F25,925,593% Jo(= T — £ F ¢
53,177,690/ 7t.) & &F A B % 17 L 38 A% Jn 4
F 15 B% #3,628,800, oooﬁx(_ —tF:
3,628,800,0000%) 5+ &

BRREERT
T-N\FR-F—+

kS
=+ — B 1Ll F E 3 A&
EER MBI EREERT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7= S B4 7% ¥R 7 MY
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & =

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold

Buildings improvements

#F HEAYERE

Furniture
and fixture
RER
BERE

Office

equipment

BoEd

— =

—=

5T (continued )

—NE+=A=t+—BILFE
19. % - BERRE

Computer

Tk

Motor
vehicle

RE

Cost %3
At 1 January 2017 R=E-+4-A-H 187,561 1,983,930 633,614 1,154,502 1,340,588 —  5300,195
Additions RE — 5,089,670 570,498 753,697 1,496,090 — 7,909,955
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-BHEAR
(note 35(A)) (B 35(A)) - — 8,118 24,022 273,935 — 306,075
Disposals HE — (1,463,520 (253,330) (679,443) (116,908) —  (2513,201)
At 31 December 2017 and RZB—+&+=A=1t—H
1 January 2018 k=T-N\E-F-AH 187,561 5,610,080 958,900 1,252,778 2,993,705 — 11,003,024
Additions RE — 191,850 186,132 62,657 259,065 260,000 959,704
Disposals e — (245,920) (126,703) (157,593) (31,761) — (561,977)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\F
+-A=+-AH 187,561 5,556,010 1,018,329 1,157,842 3,221,009 260,000 11,400,751
Accumulated depreciation RitE
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+%£-fA—H 124,662 1,333,676 459,966 827,667 989,029 — 3,735,000
Charge for the year FRZH 18,756 1,253,768 206,116 332,509 852,750 = 2,663,899
Disposals HE —  (1,138392) (205,835) (537,513) (92,687) —  (1,974427)
At 31 December 2017 and WZE—t§+-A=1+—H
1 January 2018 k=F-N\¥-HF—H 143,418 1,449,052 460,247 622,663 1,749,092 — 4424472
Charge for the year ERFTH 18756 2,584,803 348,078 413,186 1,044,842 37,917 4,447,582
Disposals HE — (245,920) (126,703) (155,054) (31,761) — (559,438)
At 31 December 2018 R=B—N\E+-A=+-H 162,174 3,787,935 681,622 880,795 2,762,173 37,917 8312616
Carrying amount WREE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\5+-A=1+—H 25,387 1,768,075 336,707 277,047 458,836 222,083 3,088,135
At 31 December 2017 R-F—t£+-A=1—H 44,143 4,161,028 498,653 630,115 1,244,613 — 6,578,552
E-—CHLBREEERAT T2 /\FEERH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
20. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER FINANCE LEASES 20.

MEMEANTHESE it

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
& TT
At 1 January Rn—A—H 1,285,161 1,328,694
Amortisation during the year F B (43,533) (43,533)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,241,628 1,285,161
The Group's leasehold land is analysed as follows: AEENBEEL AT

2017
—E—tF
HK$
T

In Hong Kong NS
Medium-term leases FEFE A 1,241,628 1,285,161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

21. GOODWILL

21. B8

HK$
I
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2017 RZT—tF—HA—H —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)) TR UL EE — R B 2 &) (K :E35(A)) 1,423,124
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZZT—tF+=A=+—8"
31 December 2018 —T-N\F—-—A—HEK
T N\F+=ZA=+—H 1,423,124
Accumulated impairment losses EitiREBE
At 1 January 2017 R=ZZ—+tF—H—H —
Impairment loss recognised B R (1,423,124)
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and R—E—+tF+-_A=+—8 "
31 December 2018 —T-N\F—A—HBK
- \FE+=ZA=+—H (1,423,124)
Carrying amount RREE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H —
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H —

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating unit (“CGU") that are expected to
benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated into the securities trading segment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market development.

Due to the tense competition in the securities trading market, the
Group expected that there would not be sufficient trading activities to
cover all relevant costs and expenses for this CGU in the near term.
Consequently, the directors determined to impair the goodwill
amounting to HK$1,423,124 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

RAEBAHPAREEE  RKBEDE
ERMRZEEGREHIREZESESE
Bu((REEEEM) -HEZEEHES

Hﬂim%iﬁﬁﬁ%

REeELBMNZARESERELFERAE
EFEARBEESREZET -WRASH
EAZEIERIAHANBRINAE  BE
%ﬂT&M¥$ZF“ AEEF A RBR
EMEBEBEZBEMMBIHERREESE
iﬁl%%ﬁﬂ 2 2 B AT Al 5T AT IR
E o BHEEMEREEFRNREBEBETESL
REmISEREGTEREITMHE -

EREBLHEEMSHRT R AEEES -
RHERZEETHRENEERECEE
BNNMEHRBRARAY KR ES
/%i%ﬁhtfg‘“ti*ifﬂzﬂhfaﬁ
FEELEERE  BEEDN 423,124

JT °©

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — TRADING RIGHT 22. B EE — EZ

HK$
BT
Cost and carrying amount XA R BR T (B
At 1 January 2017 RZT—tF—HA—H =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)) Us B8 — RE BS 8 2 &) (Fff :E35(A) ) 3,100,000
At 31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 and RZZT—+tF+=A=+—8"
31 December 2018 —E-NF-H—HBK
—E-N\F+-_A=+—H 3,100,000
The Group’s eligibility right to trade on or through the Stock AEBERBIRBHIMETEED
Exchange is considered to have indefinite life, which is not amortised S B RETIRE RS ERF M A E#
but is reviewed annually for impairment and is reviewed for o EFFELHBRERS - WA HIREM
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the =14 ol AR R & B 8 R AR T (B 3 T AR U B BRE
carrying amount may not be recoverable. EHRERE -
The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its REBR-_ZE—+ER T N\FHHE
trading right in 2017 and 2018. The recoverable amount has been SEZAKREB S EETRN AT KE S
determined on the basis of fair values less costs of disposal using Tk A B R B B AN B (F B R A B R
replacement cost method. No impairment loss was recognised during FET - HE-_ZT—tFRER=_ZT—N\F
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018. +ZA=+—RALFE BEEIREES

18 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RHEBARIMNRE

RZZE-NF+_A=+—8 KxRAM
BARMFEET

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued/registered

Percentage of
ownership
attributable to

Note:

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
ML BT/ FASEGHEE
&5 o R A B B R A BSEE TEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE 3
First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands HK$150,000,000 100 — Investment holding
First Holdings Consortium Limited EBRAHS 150,000,000 7¢ ®EER
First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Inactive
FE—ERUBK(HE)AERAR v 17T TmEE
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$90 100 — Investment holding
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited HEEZAS 903 T ®EER
Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 — Investment holding
EAE—ERERAA RERZHES IE K& ERK
Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 — Investment holding
(formerly known as “Gorgeous Rise
Limited”)
Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited EBRAHS 100370 ®EER
(B #8 [ Gorgeous Rise Limited ])
First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 — 100  Provision and arrangement
E—CERUBERIDF B 153,550,0003% 7T of credit facilities
RERLZHEERE
Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 — 100  Inactive
Honour Event Limited EBELHS 17T B
Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 — 100  Securities dealing
DMEIEZESFER DA B 90,000,000/ 7T EBHFRS
First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Inactive
FE—ERUK(FE)AERAA o 10,0007 7T TmEE
First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100  Investment holding
FE—ERERBRQA o 17T K& ERK

All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

MizE: LAPFBEMBRARERBEREERAR -

E—REREERRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. LOANS RECEIVABLE

24. BWER

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
BT
Loans to customers EFEX 946,645,700 878,068,879
Accrued interest receivables JE L2 FE 5T I B 13,935,993 8,637,346
960,581,693 886,706,225
Impairment allowance on individual assessment & 2 &F & B 350 (B B 15 (1,431,260) (1,548,077)
Impairment allowance on collective assessment %= 82 &F (& AU 5L (B B {5 (17,633,985) (5,289,384)
941,516,448 879,868,764

Analysed as: Ellp=2
Non-current assets IERBEE 433,645,920 346,022,026
Current assets mE & E 507,870,528 533,846,738
941,516,448 879,868,764

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans

receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed

regularly by management.

The loans receivable above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

ARG — B R S R U E B U E K
BRGEERRRERE - EREEHR

BEER o

bt R E SRIAE TTAHE

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as follows: BREFNEELEESTET :

2017
—E—+F
HK$
87T

Neither past due nor impaired SR8 B SR (B
— Secured — BHEH 181,677,409 269,159,667
— Unsecured — R 605,867,437 545,075,972
Less than 1 month past due BmEINE— @R 58,521,534 45,176,745
1 to 3 months past due mH—==@A 75,058,243 22,025,427
Over 3 months past due B HR R iR = (A A 8,635,689 3,500,000
929,760,312 884,937,811
Impaired (note) A (B 3E) 30,821,381 1,768,414
960,581,693 886,706,225
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&

jﬁ% &?E Bﬁ mf (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Cont'd)

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivable for
which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at year
end date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
individual customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment on these individual loans was necessary as
these loans receivable were substantially/fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period or there had not been a significant change in credit
quality that these balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Amongst all past due but not impaired loans, a secured fixed loan of
HK$18,276,250 (2017: HK$20,000,000) as at 31 December 2018 was
secured by equity interest in a private company with value amounted
to HK$18,000,000 (2017: HK$17,205,279) and a secured revolving
loan of HK$19,937,597 (2017: Nil) was secured by assets held by a
private company with value amounted to HK$38,337,764 (2017: Nil).
As at 31 December 2017, a first mortgage loan of HK$3,500,000 and
a second mortgage loan of HK$1,992,826 were secured by collaterals
with fair value (based on its prevailing market price) amounted to
HK$5,200,000 and HK$11,800,000 respectively as at 31 December
2017. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the
remaining individually past due but not impaired loans receivable.
Over 80% of the loans receivable were subsequently settled after the
end of the reporting period.

The individually impaired loans receivable relate to clients that were in
financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivable was expected
to be recovered. As at 31 December 2018, the impaired first
mortgage loan of HK$3,500,000 was secured by collateral with fair
value (based on its prevailing market price) amounted to
HK$5,200,000 and the impaired secured revolving loan of
HK$26,235,802 was secured by equity interest in a private company.
The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining
individually impaired loans receivable. As at 31 December 2017, no
collateral was held by the Group for the impaired loans receivable.

24, EWER (&)

M : ERFEBERREBRELTDHEH
B 0 B 51 R (B e UK B R AR o

A 4% 380 B 7 4 OR% {8 O FE W TR OE B R %0 AR
WEHRDHENTEERTSEM -

Ea e W SR ENEKFIRESZZRA
SEERFAGBRENBEAATFEHN - R
BBELER ARRERUERCRRE
BHERHy,  BHREX EEEETWESE
REE - BZEERDER AT 28R ME
HERRRBAR U S ERERIELRE
B

R—E—NF+-_A=+—BEFREESR
HEVYERENERT  FEAEHER
18,276,250% Jt (= & — £ 4 : 20,000,000
) Th AR — @ FL & A F]1{E {518,000,000
IR E (ZF —+4F 1 17,205,279 1)
ERIEIR - A EIPEIRE 519,937,597
T(ZZE—+tF T)UA—HLERTEA
fB{E38,337, 7648 TMEE(ZT — Lt F :
D)ERER -R=_FT—tF+=_A=1+—
H—%£ 5 X85 53,500 ooo;‘%r‘c&—%
8 RIRIBE 301,992,826 7L Jh AR =
—tfﬁJr_H:wL—ElAWE(&E;?HTm
B5t &) 9 Bl A5,200,0007 7t 11,800,000
BRI RIEAEE - A& EY &%
TER D @A EYERENEREREE
T (] 35 37 @R o 78080% K JE UK B SR A 3 &5 51
RELT -

BERREREKERERATREZENTF
B BHES Mo EBKEBETKE -
RZFE—-—N\FE+=-_A=+—H BRESE
R 38 B 513,500,000 7T T3 A A FE (IR &
B R M EsT =) 35,200,000 T A 1K 1 5 1E
AER MEREEERARBRE EX
26,235,802/ o AR — L& A Bl M BRAE1E
AER AEBUERBEEMNE@EHTHE
BlREREKERNEFRR R —tF
+ZA=+—RH AEEVEFRDHERE
KWERFEERD -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

T N\Ft-A=t-ALFE
25. BW R

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
& TT
Accounts receivable arising from the securities EHFEBBEBKELN
trading business: FE M BR 3K
— Clients — 5P — 4,252,258
The aging analysis of the accounts receivable is as follows: LA % FE WA SR A BR R 3 47T
2018 2017
—E—tF
HK$
7T
Past due B 8 H
— 1 to 3 months — —EZ={AH — 4,252,258
The settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the securities BLHEBEXBGEANEWRR Z2EEBRA
trading business are two days after trade date or at specific terms RPBEMARSIZERF 2 BB KR

agreed with clients.

At 31 December 2017, the past due accounts receivable from clients
in the amount of HK$4,252,258 bear an interest of 8% per annum.
The balance was fully settled during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

27.

28.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. %’A%ZE#AE%E@%EQE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB ETRRAES
at fair value -/ L[]

2017

—ZT—+F

HK$

HIT

— 21,925,350

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices.

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as
held for trading.

The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity
securities that offer the Company the opportunity for return through
dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or
coupon rate.

BANK BALANCES — TRUST AND
SEGREGATED ACCOUNTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks or
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal
course of business. The Group classified the clients’ monies as cash
held on behalf of clients under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised the

corresponding accounts payable to respective clients.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

27.

28.

ETESFHNRAFEDERRITEAE -

e EENREAEDDEARIEES -

thERMEERNEMRAELFNERE

TyE BB AR AT ERES /AR AR
HEfEe P EEEINHAXERR

% o
RITHEE — FERBYLR

B

AEERFRRTAEERBRBBILE
AP UBBERAEEBELANTP
RE-AEBEBUEEEFPREDBRE
BHMBHARRNRDEERTHRREP
FEWHA S ITHRARMN THEETFHHE

Accounts payable arising from the securities BHREEEBELEN
trading business: FEATBR 3K :
— Clients BB

V& 14 BR 3K
2017
—E—+tF
HK$
T
159,149 793,623

The settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the securities
trading business are two days after trade date or at specific terms
agreed with clients. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of the securities trading
business.

EREEEBELANEBNER2EERR
R P REKMREIZET P 2 B8 & R
MmE - BEREREON EAEARAE

ERRERIBREEEBMHEL R
DA BWEBINE 3

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 29. ;T EER
2017
—ZE—tF
HK$
& TT
Loan from independent third party (note) BYE=FE R — 150,000,000
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
2017
—ET—+t4F
HK$
T
On demand or within one year BRERH—FNR — 150,000,000
In the second year FF — —
In the third to fifth year F=FRERNF — —
After five years FF 1% — —
— 150,000,000
Portion of loans that are due for repayment —FRIHHEEE
after one year but contain a repayment BEREREEKGK
on demand clause (shown under current FGIARBER)
liabilities) HE R D — —
Amount due for settlement within 12 months +Z@AREEZHIE
(shown under current liabilities) (B A BB &) — 150,000,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in AEEBENREEAETE-
Hong Kong dollars.
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no available RZBE-—NFRZZT—EF+ZA=+—
undrawn borrowing facilities. H AEEWEAHBAREREERE
The average interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as RMEMROFHIFEQOT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Loan from independent third party BYFE=FER N/A RiEH 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 S 87 75 3R 7 MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

29. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Cont’d)

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, First Credit Limited (“FCL"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had breached the repayment terms of
an interest-bearing loan in the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (“1st Loan")
obtained from an independent third party (“Lender”). The 1st Loan together
with the interest accrued thereon in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$52,500,000 was due and repayable on 27 February 2018. FCL made a
partial repayment of approximately HK$22,500,000 on the due date and the
remaining principal amount of HK$30,000,000 became past due on the same
date.

As the breach of repayment term constituted an event of default, the Lender
requested FCL and the Company, which served as the guarantor of FCL under
the loan agreement, for immediate repayment for all amounts owing by FCL to
it by 13 March 2018, including the overdue principal in the amount of
HK$30,000,000 as mentioned above, the outstanding principal of another loan
obtained from the Lender in the amount of HK$50,000,000 (“2nd Loan”) which
was originally due and payable on 30 March 2018, and the interests accrued on
the overdue amount of the 1st Loan and on the 2nd Loan.

The Company and FCL received a writ of summons dated 17 April 2018
(“Writ”) with a statement of claim issued in the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of Hong Kong by the Lender claiming for, among other matters, the
repayment of a loan in the outstanding principal amount which was alleged to
be approximately HK$62.7 million and the interest accrued thereon.

On 30 May 2018, FCL, the Company and the Lender reached a settlement
arrangement in relation to the claim made by the Lender under the Writ
(“Action”) and a consent order (“Consent Order”) was issued by the court.
Pursuant to the Consent Order, it is ordered that (i) FCL and the Company shall
pay the Lender the sums and in such manner as set out in the minutes of
agreement dated 30 May 2018 (“Settlement Agreement”) entered into among
the parties; and (ii) all further proceedings in the Action be stayed upon the
terms set out in the Settlement Agreement save for the purpose of carrying the
said terms and the Consent Order into effect.

As at the date of the Settlement Agreement, the aggregate amount of the
outstanding principal and interests payable by FCL and the Company to the
Lender was approximately HK$23 million. Under the Settlement Agreement, it
was agreed, among other matters, that FCL and the Company should pay the
Lender a sum of HK$23,043,122.96 in five weekly instalments with the last
instalment to be due on 29 June 2018. On 22 June 2018, the Group fully
settled all amounts payable under the Settlement Agreement and the Lender
filed a Notice of Discontinuance to discontinue its claim in the Action on 27
June 2018.

29.

it RERE)

p

m

BE-T-—N\F+-A=+-—BHLFE £
RUBERRARAARARZEZEWE QR
(TFCLNERABILE=F((HEAN)BRELSE
8 /50,000,000 TH T B ER([E—EER])
MEERR - F—EENERENFEEGHY
52,500,000 TR =T —\F_A=+tHEZ
HEE-FARIHAEELE LI ERY
22,500,000/ 7T + i # T 48 < §830,000,0007% 7T 7
A B @ -

HREREEGEFERENEMF  WEAZKFCL
EARR (BEFCLAERBZETHERAR=
E-N\E=A+=-ANABEBCLAERNE
B IE - B 45 L il 8 B 7 & %830,000,0007% 7T
BEREADRGHNS EEXNAEELASE
50,000,000/ T ([SE-BERD(RAR =T —N
F=ZA=+HIHEMUARRE-—SERXRSE
—EERAHTDMESFE o

ARBIRFCLEE—HBHA-T—N\FENA++
BrEASMK (SR RHEARESSE AR
FAAEEZELNNBERKRNE R(EPEE)EER
2 E 4962,700,0008 TTHI R EEER A& R EFT
M EMFEHEBER-

RZZE—NFREA=1TH FCL - ARAKRKE
ABERREARIE MR L Z AR ([EFER]) EHL
MEZH ZREZHRAZES(AEL]) - RE
AES TROFCLEARRIERBE ARERTH
FZEAERA-_S-N\ERAA=THNHE
ik ([fRgmR ) 8z h A ZERE &
(DR ABRT ERGERRLSRAESERZ BHIH -
Fi B A B3 57 7 B H 4t 75 22 72 Fr 19 ZB R IR A0 7 177 5
FI# 6B E -

AR B H > FCLR AR A B & [ R E A X
B AR EEAS R 2B EEHL 523,000,000% 7T °
BEMNBERE AEEHFPBE)FCLRAR AR
HBH HERE AX23,043,122.96i6 7T H
BE—HER-T-—N\EAA=-TABEH - &K
EEER=-E-NENA-T-BEHLEERE
MBEBEENZMARERBREAER=ZF—N\
FERNAZTEERIKIEBHE  RIEHEFRA
FHERR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—T—/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX

The following are deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the

Group:

Accelerated
tax

depreciation
o 3 Hi 15
e

Depreciation
allowance

in excess

of related
depreciation
BB E
B $7 B8 45

30. IELEH IR

VAR R AN 5 B 7 23

Provision for
impairment
on loans and
receivables
ERRERK
RIEEEEAE

EEHRARBEREE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—HA—H 120 — (905,748) (905,628)
Charged to profit or loss for FANTEEZE P MK
the year (note 14) (P 7E14) 269,074 — 33,000 302,074
At 31 December 2017 and RZT—+F
1 January 2018 +TZA=+—HkK
—T—N\&—H—H 269,194 — (872,748) (603,554)
Credited to profit or loss for FAEEZEP A
the year (note 14) (fF7E14) (269,194) — (2,234,503) (2,503,697)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\EF
+-A=+—8 — — (3,107,251)  (3,107,251)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 30.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for statement of financial position purposes:

IEERL IR (2)

NE R B AR R R T F AR AE IR A AR
(IR IHR) 3 AT

—E-N\E —T—t+4F

HK$

T BT

Deferred tax liabilities FEEREAE — 269,194
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE (3,107,251) (872,748)
(3,107,251) (603,554)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$22,910,048
(2017: HK$21,075,088) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

& HAR - R D AT TE AT R SRR A SRR -
B B AR T E5 822,910,048 L (=2 — &
% ¢ 21,075,088/ Jr) 7R 3 R B 1 & EE o
TRIEBIEAEREALEE o

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. K&
2017
—E—tF
HK$
78 T
Authorised: EE
250,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 250,000,000,0004%
HK$0.02 each F0%0.0278 T E B AR 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHME :
3,628,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each  3,628,800,0004%
& }%0.027%8 7T By 3 3 Ak 72,576,000 72,576,000

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

AEBEAEENETZERRAREAKE
BESBELENRENRBFHRIFNERE
BHE AXHEEBRENRABRERE
I

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 31. RA& (&)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing
debts as may be appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt comprises borrowings and obligations under finance lease less
bank and cash balances. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public
float requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2018,
31.43% (2017: 31.43%) of the shares were in public hands.

Any breach of the financial covenants by the Group may result in the
lenders demanding for repayment of the loans. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group had breached the repayment terms of
an interest-bearing loan as disclosed in note 29. There had been no
breach of the financial covenants in respect of any interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. KA R M BEMRR KK #1EE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )
(A)  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A AR BMRRE
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E
Note HK$ HK$
F 2 I BT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries KM B AR & E 245,000,789 245,000,789
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE R RkH
receivables b JE U 7k I8 445,515 715,265
Due from subsidiaries NN 487,030,631 496,528,248
Bank and cash balances WITRIA© &% 397,877 81,708
Total current assets MENEEEEE 487,874,023 497,325,221
Current liabilities REBERE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H b RE
A 497,833 10,096,715
Due to subsidiaries R ENGIE ] 20,241 20,241
Total current liabilities nEBEEETE 518,074 10,116,956
Net current assets RBEEFE 487,355,949 487,208,265
NET ASSETS BEFE 732,356,738 732,209,054
Capital and reserves BERREHE
Share capital f& A 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves ] 32(B) 659,780,738 659,633,054
TOTAL EQUITY S 732,356,738 732,209,054
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and are RZZE—NE=A=-+-HKE=S

signed on its behalf by:

gHE VATIEERKRESE

Li Sin Hung Maxim
FiRt
Director

EF

Wong Kai Lun
=RfA
Director

EF

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #= & 8 7% 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Cont’d)

(B)

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

T N\E+-ASt-RLEE

32.

Py 5

’L\n

(continued 1&)

7N

m) Bt Bk R R e

Share Capital  Contributed Accumulated Proposed
premium reserve surplus losses final dividend
It BAGE BB RitlE BRANRS
HK$ HK$
#T &R
At 1 January 2017 RZZ2—+t5-A—H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (43,091,274) 7,257,600 672,568,273
Loss for the year FRER — — — (5,677,619 — (5,677,619)
Dividend paid BRRE — — — —  (7,257,600)  (7,257,600)
At 31 December 2017 and RZF—tET=A=t-HR
1 January 2018 —Z-\f¥-A-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (48,768,893) — 659,633,054
Profit for the year FREA - - - 147,684 - 147,684
At 31 December 2018 R-F-\$¥+-A=+-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (48,621,209) — 659,780,738

33. RESERVES

(A)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive

income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 81 and 84 of this

annual report respectively.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 December 2014, the change of the domicile of the
Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda was
approved by the shareholders. The change of domicile of
the Company was completed on 5 February 2015. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =&
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

33. BE (&)

33. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont’a)

(i)

(iif)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group's reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the Company’'s shares in 2009 and
represented the difference between the nominal value of
the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
under the reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of
the Group reorganisation implemented in preparation for
the listing of the Company’'s shares in 2009 and
represented the excess of the consolidated net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal value of the
share capital

of the Company issued in exchange

therefore.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed

surplus account is available for distribution to
shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if:

— the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

,QZ 5% & ?E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)

B) EMUEERBENGE)

(i)

(iif)

E—REREERRAA

BARHE

AEENEAFHBERASE
BHEARBABRNN_ZZNF
EmmETEAMES - ER
BB BB KB 2 B
IR AT E R KRR R ME R R
MBETHRAEEERE -

ARBNERFEYEAAEE
BEARBRNN-_ZZNSF
ETTMETEARESL 1D
WENBQBERNESEE
FEBEARBIERR MM E
THRAEEZ 25 -

BA B

REBRAKRRBOHARRT
BAAEEFHARBBRDEE
RATEX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% ¥ 2% MY 5T (continuea #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE
34.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations and providing the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants. Eligible participants include full-time or part-time
employees, directors (including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors) and any consultants or advisers
(whether professional or otherwise and whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or
unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service provider, agent,
customer and business partner of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries, who, at the sole determination of the board of directors
of the Company, have contributed to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”). The Share Option Scheme was
adopted on 24 November 2011 and, unless otherwise terminated by
the shareholders or the board of directors of the Company, will

remain in force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at the listing
date of the Company or the date of shareholders’ approval of a
refreshment of such limit in a general meeting of the Company
(“Scheme Limit"”). The Scheme Limit was refreshed pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2017 and the Scheme Limit
as refreshed is 362,880,000 ordinary shares, which represents 10% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report. The maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 S 87 75 3R 7 MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE_ZT—)/\F+_A=1T—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont‘d)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval by all the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer and having
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
such period as determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which period shall not be more than 14 days from the date of the
offer. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during a
period as may be specified by the board of directors of the Company,
the expiry date of such period shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant of the option. Unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors of the Company, there is no general requirement on the
minimum period for which an option must be held or any
performance targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares on GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its inception.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(A)

35. KEBFT B 2 A

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE A HERWE -—FHATHLEESR
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP BEBEXREEWNE QA
On 1 April 2017, the Company completed its subscription for RZZT—tFMHA—H KRAFRTK
79 shares of Asia Wealth at a cash consideration of B Asia Wealth 798X %D - IR &K
HK$79,100,000 (“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was for the {8 479,100,000/ 7o ([ BEEBIE ) -
purpose of diversifying the Group’s business and the risk WEEBEDEEEZ TEERASH
thereof. ZEBRDEERR -
Immediately upon the completion of the Acquisition, the ZHTKBEEER KAAAFEA
Company held approximately 88.89% of the issued share capital Asia  Wealth iR ¥ U 8% = 18 i 25 & 2%
of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the TR MBERANBEBITREALD
additional shares under the Acquisition. Asia Wealth became a 88.89% ° Asia WealthpX &R A 7l 2
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Through the 2 EM B AR FE B W EAsa
Acquisition in Asia Wealth, the Company has acquired an Wealth + 282 &)Y 88 7 28 M Bl = 75 3
indirect equity interest in Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a BR AR (BAsia Wealthz &= & I B
wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Wealth, which holds the licence NR)Z HERE ZRARRESE
to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under EOIESNEFESF MBS FHE R
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws BARSEF B (EHFXRH)XHE
of Hong Kong) and is principally engaged in dealing in BE EBENREFHEE -
securities.
Prior to the Acquisition, the Company held approximately W =BT - AN FlHE A Asia Wealth
9.09% equity interest in Asia Wealth (or approximately 1.11% #99.09% % # (=K 4R #% Y 8 = 18 Ac 3%
of the issued share capital of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the R EHATEINR M & LK BAsa
allotment and issue of the additional shares under the WealthE B 1T IR A 491.11% ) - B 4
Acquisition) and the investment was recognised as available-for- KENERAAUHEHESHEE - A
sale financial assets. The fair value has been re-measured at FHLK B # T E1% /7983,2528 T &
HK$983,252 and the fair value gain of HK$83,252 has been N {E U 2583,2527%8 Jo 7 H th 2 T U
recognised in the other comprehensive income, which was then ANHER - Hig R iE B8 TR &R
released to the profit or loss upon completion of the CENEA
Acquisition.
The following table summarises the consideration paid for the TRBEMKEEED X HOKE
Acquisition, the fair value of the assets acquired, liabilities ERWEBHMBEEE  AES
assumed and the non-controlling interests at the acquisition BRIFERER A TFE -
date.
1 April 2017
—E—tH
mA—H
Purchase consideration EERE
— Cash paid — BEffH & 79,100,000
— Fair value of previously held interest — AT Asia Wealth TS 125 2
in Asia Wealth ~¥E 983,252
80,083,252

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018



35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 7% ¥R 2 MY 3T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP

(Cont’d)

The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

35. WEEMY B 2 A (47

A sRBREB-—FHAIELESH

EEEEASENBLRR (&)

AREBMREBEEERMARZERAEBZ

assumed: AT
1 April 2017

—E—tH

mA—H

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR E 306,075
Trading right =L 3,100,000
Other assets HiEE 200,000
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 84,050,107
Bank balances — trust and segregated accounts RITHB — EERBILER 3,429,962
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3K 7,682,715
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR - R e RE M EWKRIE 1,009,682
Accounts payable FE 7T RR K (11,133,722)
Accruals and other payables FEGH B A K& H 4th FE 5 50IA (152,175)
Total identifiable net assets AIEBFEERE 88,492,644
Non-controlling interests JE 12 A A R (9,832,516)
Goodwill mE 1,423,124
80,083,252

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition: MBEEEEE 2R RAFE
HK$

A&

Cash consideration BeRE (79,100,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEWEReRREEED 84,050,107
4,950,107

Acquisition-related costs of HK$72,000 have been charged to
other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2017.

W BEME R K ZK72,0008 TE REE =
E—t+F+_A=+—BHLEEEHN
HABEZREMEERARNEAMD

EERX AR -

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(A)

STEP ACQUISITION FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS TO A SUBSIDIARY OF THE GROUP
(Cont’d)

The goodwill arising from the Acquisition is attributable to the
synergies expected to arise from the business combination and
future growth of Asia Wealth.

The gross contractual amounts of accounts and other
receivables were HK$8,692,397. None of these receivables had
been impaired nor expected to be uncollectible.

Asia Wealth contributed a revenue of HK$302,913 and incurred
a loss of HK$3,090,338 in the period between the date of
Acquisition and 31 December 2017.

If the Acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2017, the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 would have been HK$116,228,395 and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would have been HK$51,405,781.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of
operations of the Group that would actually have been achieved
had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, and is
not intended to be a projection of future results.

The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interests
at their proportionate share of Asia Wealth's total identifiable
net assets for this Acquisition.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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(A)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7= 5
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & =

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(B)

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS WITHOUT
CHANGE IN CONTROL

On 24 October 2017,
approximately 11.11% of the issued shares of Asia Wealth held

the Group acquired the remaining

by the non-controlling interests for a cash consideration of
HK$15,000,000. Immediately prior to the purchase, the carrying
amount of the approximately 11.11% non-controlling interests
in Asia Wealth was HK$9,561,256. The Group recognised the
same amount in non-controlling interests and a decrease in
equity attributable to the owners of the parent of
HK$5,438,744. The effect on the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 is summarised as follows:

,BZ ﬁ% & ,;_E Bﬁ mf (continued #&)
—E-N\FE+ZA=F+—HLFE

35. WEEFH B 2 &) (4F)

(B)

EEGENE T KB IFERER

RZFE—tF+AZ+MEA  AEH
s B8 JEHE IR 4 25 T 5 Asia Wealth#2 T
AN NM%BEETRD BHeREAR
15,000,000/ 7t © 2 £ W g AT » Asia
Wealth#911.11% B9 JF £ AR # & 2 BR
T 8 /49,561,256/8 7T ° 7N & @ 7 R
HRESENFEERES LT ARHE
B A JE k2= 2°5,438,744% 7T ©
RBEE-_T—tHF+=-A=+—8H
IEFERRRHEEABRGERA T
ZaAmT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests

P 5 FR R B M 2 2 BR T (B

acquired 9,561,256
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests BT IEERERKE (15,000,000)
(5,438,744)

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

REE-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
IEFEREEI R ERETEM
R5 o

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_ZT - /\F+_A=+—HILFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. e H e RERMEF
OF CASH FLOWS

(A)

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to a provisional sale and purchase agreement dated 29
November 2016 entered into between the Group and an
independent third party (“Purchaser”), the Group agreed to sell
its entire equity interest in Techlink Investments Limited
(“Techlink”) and all the debts owing by Techlink to the Group
as at completion to the Purchaser at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$91,000,000 subject to adjustments at
completion (“Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 20
February 2017.

Techlink held certain investment properties (“Properties”) for
rental income purpose. In view of the capital gain which was
expected to be derived from the Disposal, the management of
the Company considered that it was in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders to dispose of Techlink in order to
realise the Group’s investment in the Properties and to utilise
the proceeds from the Disposal for further development of the
Group’s money lending business.

Net assets of Techlink at the date of disposal were as follows:

REAEBEBIE=1(BHFI) T
VAPE-T-—X"E+—A=+AN
AN —EHEREE R A5ERE
MEFEEERNBHREFRA A
(M8} 22 BREREETHR S
RBpERAESBZMBEES 431
% X {891,000,0007% 7t (7] 7 52 A 32
SRHAR)(HEEE])  HEFH
RZE—tF=-_A=+HZEK-"

iR AR TREME (W) ER
BESWA - EREHAHEERHE
EEAYE  AAREEERR/LE
BRARERAEERDENRE R
PRALESEMSRBE - TER
AEBHRERES  HHTAARAR
H R R A 28 -

mHNEERRNEEFENT

Property, plant and equipment M- BB REE 1,416,487
Investment properties BEY 47,700,000
Leasehold land under finance leases MEMBLTHEE L 27,670,598
Other receivables H {h g Uy FE 9,643
Tax payable eI IR (40,000)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B & (172,722)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 76,584,006
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 11) & — BT A Bl e (B sE11) 13,212,189
Total consideration RIEHETE 89,796,195
Consideration satisfied by: FELUATHANRAE :

Cash B 91,000,000

Less: Direct cost associated with the disposal B EBEERBNEEKAE (1,203,805)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEENRES R AFRE 89,796,195

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—)/\F+-A=+—HLFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. fRie R RERMEF (©Z)
OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’a)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM B) BMEGFHELEBEZLHIER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TERHBINAEERMEETSMELR
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEzE#BFE DERERIRGHE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for FopmERBMEENBBERIREN
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EE%“&HﬂiﬂUﬁﬁmu SN
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows ERcRenegRoBRAMERE
from financing activities. i)j MIREeRENEE -

Interest-bearing

loans (note 29) Loan notes Total
AERER
(Bf&E29) HRRE ok
HK$ HK$ HK$
EITT EITT EITT
At 1 January 2017 ﬁA —T—t&—A—H 58,577,594 32,933,178 91,510,772
Interest-bearing loans raised ~ #7f& fm,\mk 150,000,000 — 150,000,000
Repayment BER (58,537,056) (33,000,000) (91,537,056)
Interest paid BAFS (1,995,767) (922,500) (2,918,267)
Interest expenses (note 12) B % (Bt 5£12) 8,401,807 989,322 9,391,129
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—+tF+-A=+—8BK
1 January 2018 —E2-N\F—-H—H 156,446,578 = 156,446,578
Repayment B (150,000,000) = (150,000,000)
Interest paid EENEE) (8,029,424) — (8,029,424)
Interest expenses (note 12) FEREZ (ME12) 1,582,846 — 1,582,846
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+-A=+—H — — —
Analysed by: DHTR
At 31 December 2018 RZF-\F+=ZRA=+—H
— Principal — X% — — —
— Accrued interest (grouped — — FE&H I B (55 A H it fE 4 5K IE)
in other payables) — — —
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF+-A=+—H
— Principal — K% 150,000,000 = 150,000,000
— Accrued interest (grouped — — FE&HFIB (55 A H fth f& 14 5K IE)
in other payables) 6,446,578 — 6,446,578
156,446,578 — 156,446,578
At 1 January 2017 R-ZF—t%—HA—H
— Principal — K% 58,537,056 32,873,178 91,410,234
— Accrued interest (grouped  — FE&H B (55 A H fth & 4 5K IE)
in other payables) 40,538 60,000 100,538
58,577,594 32,933,178 91,510,772

E-—HReREEARARN —T—N\EFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY 2% (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & &£ —

37.

38.

T N\E+-ASt-RLEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. ARG E
At 31 December 2018, the Group had the following significant RZEBE-N\F+ZA=+—HB x58#%
contingent liabilities: BEUTERKAREBRE:
The Group’s external legal counsel advised that the Group's loan AEBRIINFEZRBREREL  AEEP R
agreements which involve charging an interest rate at a rate more Uk BY B 848 % 18 1K 7A60% Hy F ) K ) B 3K
than 48%, but less than 60% per annum shall be presumed to be Tﬁ%%%ﬂgﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ'ﬁ’lf{ B EGE MR E e
extortionate and such portion of extortionate interest is potentially HAORAIRERERERTE AT A ABIBIT - A
unenforceable as determined by the court. Subject to the court's - 1%1x£fE%J§Eﬁfl%'Ha HAMENE
consideration of facts relevant to individual borrowers, this ERFBBERZBEMNEMFEILIFETE
presumption may be rebutted if the court, having regard to all BRI ARAT A EEA] FRE - R =T
circumstances, is satisfied that such rate is not unreasonable or unfair. —NF+ZA=+—H XEEEBRZE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to such EERBOEScEAER TERANEK
legal risk comprised its aggregate loans receivable of approximately B R @FEA11,210,0008 0 (ZF — £ F -
HK$11.21 million (2017: approximately HK$14.77 million). #914,770,0007 JT) °
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 38. REBFANZH
(A)  AS LESSOR: (A) ERHEA
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not lease out RZZE-—NEFR-_ZT—tF+=A
any premises to third parties under operating lease == 'K%lﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?%&%%ﬂ%@
arrangements. ZHEME=F HEE R E -
(B)  AS LESSEE: (B) {ERAMEA :
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group leased HE-_ZTZ-N\F+-A=+—HI
office premises under operating lease arrangements with EJ_EWETF@M%E%’UQEF'ZK%IE
negotiable lease terms ranging from two to three years. The ERNE  AREANEERAME
rentals were fixed over the lease terms and did not include F-HEHRNZHCEENE - H$
contingent rentals. BENREL -
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H K&
lease payments payable under a non-cancellable operating 155 1 AT RS A A AR R R B
leases as follows: N&EHAERBLBENBRAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tF
HK$ HK$
BT 77T
Within one year —FR 5,240,258 5,725,754
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FE-ERF
(BREEEMF) 1,426,581 6,898,581
6,666,839 12,624,335

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018



39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3S 87 5% 3 2% MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B EZ=-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Save for those related party transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group did not have
any material transactions with its related parties during the

(a)

39. HEAR S

Bt SRR P EM Ao AR E
FIHMBES R REHZIN K&
BERNEEBESTEETEMNE

year: N
2017
—T—tF
HK$
P& TT
Interest income from a related company KE—HBEERF
(note i) AV PN D) — 674,320
Commission expenses relating to loan notes  [A] — & B§ 5 A &) & f+F
paid to a related company (note ii) EHREREEN
18 & BA < (Hft 3Eii ) — 126,822
Notes: B &
(i) The related company is Surplus Huge Limited, of which the former (i) % B # X 7 ASurplus Huge
director of the Company, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, is a director. Limited - MAARIAAEEZEE S
Mr. Tsang ceased to be a director of the Company on 22 HEERZAREEESE - B4t
September 2017. RZZE—+tFNA-THTHEE
ERARES -
(i) The related company is Convoy Asset Management Limited, which (if) ZRERRRRAREEERERD

is indirectly wholly-owned by Convoy Global Holdings Limited, a
then substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Group had paid compensation to key management personnel
during the year as follows:

Al BARBERNEIERRER
REERERARREE2EHESR -

FAAEERNEIZEEABXNM
FEHa T

2017
—T—tF
HK$
7T
Short term employee benefits including EHEEREA

salaries, bonuses, paid annual leaves and (BiEFe B4
sick leaves BHFBRERR) 7,363,692 17,241,488
Post-employment benefits B BRIKNEF 249,313 476,752
7,613,005 17,718,240

E-—CHRSBREEFRAR —T-N\FFH



nary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the B AEE &R XU B HREREN B E A EM K
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group’s audited FEAEENHEEEUREE ABELEZT
financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This {EEE EF| B Z T o 26 2 W T KL FZ
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. MBHmEN—ED -

FINANCIAL RESULTS B ¥ E

Revenue, other income and Iz~ B A A K

other gains and losses H b U a5 Mg 18 133,660,098 81,191,777 68,404,224 59,839,009
Profit before income tax R BT 15 B0 A1 5 64,176,447 40,774,144 29,498,918 29,099,577
Income tax expense Fris®im X (11,270,017) (7,127,652) (4,626,212) (4,101,899)
Profit for the year F 1% F 52,906,430 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678
Profit/(loss) and total DTATRESREN

comprehensive income (BE)RE2EKRA

attributable to: 4EE -
Owners of the Company RARHAA 53,177,690 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678
Non-controlling interests I 12 iR 7 = (271,260) — — —

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER

Total assets BEBE 1,140,494,151 1,023,527,303 488,912,017 423,479,509
Total liabilities BERE (174,601,381)  (98,115,879)  (12,746,179)  (84,481,353)

965,892,770 925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156

Equity attributable to owners of AR R #EA A
the Company & A5 7 2 965,892,770 925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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